STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2021

Securities and Exchange Commission
Secretariat Building, PICC Complex
Roxas Boulevard, Metro Manila Philippines

The management of GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries is respansible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements including the schedules attached therein, as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, in
accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated thereln, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free frora material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's abifity to continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related:to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company orto cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsibie for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,

The Board of Directors reviews and- approves the consolidated financial staterments including the
schedules attached therein and submits the-same to the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders has sudited the
consofidated financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing,

and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairmess of presentation upon
compietion of such audit.

FHLIPE L. GOZON
Chalrman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer

AFECIPE S. YAL

e Ty ' ) --:::{
“Executive Vice s&m_e_m

Chief Financial Officer ™
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exhibited to me their (Felipe L. Gozon) TIN 106-174-605, {Gjlberto R. Duavit, Jr.) Tl 158;147-748 and
(Felipe S. Yalong) TIN 102-874-052. o
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Form Type Depattiment requiring the report Sacondary License Type, If Applicable
F cMp | | Not Applicable
1 COMPANY INFORMATION ]
Company's Emait Address Company's Telephone Number Mobite Number
l Not applicable 1 [ 8982-7177 ‘ Not applicable l
No, of Stockholders Annual Meeting {Manth # Day) Fiscal Year (Month / Dayj

I 1,660 | 5/19 . 12/31 f

\ CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION ]
The designated conlact person MUST be an Officer of the Corporation

Name of Confact Person Emieil Address Telephone Number/s Mobile Number
I Felipe S. Yalong | | FSY@gmanetwork.com | | 89285133 | | Notapplicable |
[ CONTACT PERSON's ADDRESS , |

GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue corner EDSA, Quezon City

NOTE 1: Incase of death, resignation o cessation of office of tha officer designated as contact person, such incident shall be reported to the Commission within
thirty (30) calendar days from the occurence thereof with information and complete contact defalls of the new confact person dasignated.

2: Al Boxes must be properly and completely filed-up. Failure to do so shall cause the delay @ updating the corporation's records with the Commission
andfor non~receipt of Notice of Deficiencies. Further, non-receipt of Notice of Deficiencias shall not excuse the corporation from fabillty for its deficiencies.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

GMA Network, Ine, and Subsidiaries o
GMA Network Center

Timog Avenue corner EDSA

Quezon City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GMA Netwaork, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020
and 2019, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes
in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2020 and 20619, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for cach of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Phitippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities jor the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters,
Accordingty, our audil included the performance of procedures designed to respond fo our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

(f) Revenue Recognifion

The Group derives a significant portion of its revenue from advertising, which represents 92% of the
consolidated revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020, Proper recognition of revenue from
advertising is significant to our audit given the large volume of transactions processed daily and the
highly automated airtime revenue process with multiple information technology (1T} interfaces from
initiation to reporting, Further, there are different rates applicable depending on the time slot when the
advertisements are aired which are adjusted by discounts granted by the Group on a case-by-case basis as
indicated in the telecast orders. Lastly, there are variations in the timing of billings which are made
depending on when the advertisements are aired.

Refer to Note 21 of the consolidated financial statements for the disclosure on details about the Group’s
revenues,

Audit Response

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s advertising revenue process, tested the relevant fnternal
controls and involved our internal specialist in testing the revenue-related I'T controls, In addition, we
selected samples of billing statements and performed re-computation. This was done by comparing the
rates applied to'the billing statements against the rates on the telecast orders and the billable airtime
against the certificates of performance generated when the advertisements were aired. We also tested
transactions taking place one month before and after year-end to check the timing of the recognition of
the sample advertising revenues.

(2) Adeguacy of Allowance for Expected Credit Losses vn Trade Receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating expected credit losses (ECL) on trade
receivables. Under this approach, the Group establishes a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment, Allowance for ECL and the provision for ECL as of and for the year ended December 31,
2020 amounted to £766.52 million and #347.20 million, respectively. The use of ECL model is
significant to our audit as it involves the exercise of significant management judgment. Key areas of
judgment include: segmenting the Group’s credit risk exposures; defining default; determining
assumptions to be used in the ECL model such as timing and amounts of expected net recoveries from
defaulted accounts; and incorporating forward-tooking information {called overlays), including the
impact of the coronavirys pandemie, in caleulating ECL. '

Refer to Nate 7 of the consolidated financial statements for the disclosure an the details of the allowance
for credit losses using the ECL model.
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Audit response

We obtained an understanding of the methodofogy used for the Group’s trade receivables and assessed
whether this considered the requirements of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments.

We (a}) assessed the Group's segmentation of its credit risk exposure based on homogeneity of credit risk
characteristics; (b) tested the definition of default against historical analysis of accounts and credit risk
management policies and practices in place, (¢} tested historical loss rates by inspecting historical
recoveries and write-offs; (d) checked the classification of outstanding exposures to their corresponding
aging buckets; and (e) reviewed management’s consideration of forward-looking information, including
the impact of the coronavirus pandemic in the calculation of ECL.

Further, we checked the data used in the ECL model, such as the historical aging analysis and default and
recovery data, by reconciling data from source system reports. We also reconciled sample invoices to the
foss allowance analysis/models and financial reporting systems. To the extent that the loss allowance
analysis is based on credit exposures that have been disaggregated into subsets with similar risk
characteristics, we traced or re-performed the disaggregation from source systems to the foss allowance
analysis. We also assessed the assumptions used where there are missing or insufficient data.

We recalculated impairment provisions on a sample basis.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Formi 20-18 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Repost
for the year ended December 31, 2020 but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The SEC Form 20-18 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2020 are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. ,

{n connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibitities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Counsolidated
Financial Statements

Managerent is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated {inancial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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4.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has 0o realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Respensibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements asa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of agsurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consohidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maingain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and refated disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the refated disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as & going concermn.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consofidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
controf that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all velationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
wers of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s veport is Belinda T. Beng Hui.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

(LJM ) T. u/&mz, s
Belinda T. Beng Hbi

Partner
CPA Certificate No. 88823
SEC Accreditation No. 0943-AR-2 (Group A),
March {4, 2019, valid until March 13, 2022 .
Tax ldentification No. 153-978-243
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-078-2020,
December 3, 2020, valid until December 2, 2023

ey

PTR No. 8534224, January 4, 202}, Makati City

March 26, 2021
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GMA NETWORK, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Devember 31

2020 2019
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cagh and cash cquivalents (Notes 6, 30 and 31) P3,214,817,264 P2.254.971,656
Trade and other receivables (Nofes 7, 20, 30 and 31} 10,466.537,695 5,257.147,953
Program and other rights (Note 8) 750,736,229 842 413,582
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 9) 2,014.315,306 918,901,359

Total Current Assets 16,446,406.494 9,273.434,550
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment:

At cost (Note 12) 2,588,113,704 2,695,162,487

At revalued amounts (Notes 13 and 31) 2,803,196,184 2,803,190,184
Right-of-use assets (Nate 27) 89,268,276 129,802,186
Financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive income (FYOCT)

{Notes 10, 30 and 31) 192,132,088 243,433,060
thvestments and advances (Notes 11 and 20) 184,524,315 179,766,749
Program and other rights « net of current portion (Note 8) 192,229,776 196,376,347
fnvestment propertics (Motes 14 and 31) 34,869,834 36,252.221
Deferred tax assets « net (Note 28) 1,172,719,952 474 417278
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 15, 30 and 31) 235,808,847 315,037 507

Total Noncarrent Assets 7,492,862,976 7,073,444 019
TOTAL ASSETS £23,939,269,470  P16,346.878.569
LAABILYYIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
‘Prade payables and other current liabilities (Notes 16, 30 and 31) £2,977,884,927 P#2.406,724,759
Short-term loans (Notes 17, 30 and 31) 720,345,000 400,000,000
Income t@ax payable 1,776,890,733 512,384,161
Current portion of lease tabitities (Notws 27, 30 and 31) 10,485,295 18,268,746
Obligations for program and other rights (Notes 18, 30 and 31) 176,182,128 133,784,154
Dividends payable (Notes 19, 30 and 31} 19,894,437 18,734,008

‘Total Current Liabilities 3,681,682,520 3,489,895,828
Noaeurrent Liabilities
Peasion Liabitity (Note 26} 4,915,125,689 2,733,593,128
Other long-~term employee benefits (Note 26) 349,702,454 336,401,040
fease labilities - net of current portion (Notes 27, 30 and 31) 66,370,777 87,519,369
Dismantling provision (Note 27) 44,973,416 42,392,195

‘Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,376,172,330 3.194.905,732

Total Liabilities 11,057,854,850 6,649,801,560

(Foeward)
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December 31

2020

2019

Lquity
Capital stock (Note 19)

#£4,864,692.600

£4,864,692.000

Additional paid-in capital 1,659,635,196 1.6589.035,190
Revaluation tincrement on land - net of tax (Note 13) 1.710,505,188 1,710.505, 183
Remeasyremnent toss on retirement plans - net of tax (Note 26) (2,596,957.048) (1,338.518,972)
Net unrealized foss on financial assets at FVQCT - net of tax {Note 10) (47,709,492) (2,243 454
Retained eamings (Note 19) 7,2583,764,093 2,727.238,685
Treagury stocks (Note 193 (28,483,171) (28.483.17H)
Undertying shaves of the acquired Philippine Deposit Receipts (Note 19) (5,790,016} (5,790,016}
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Paremt Company 12,809,056,750 9,586,433,436
Non-controiling interests (Nofe 2) 72,357,876 70,643,553
Total Equity ) 12,881,414,620 9.637,077.009
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY £23,939,269,470  P16,346,878,.569

See accompanying Notes to € “onsolidated Financiol Statements.
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GMA NETWORI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended Becember 31

2020 2019 2018
REVENUES (Note 21) £19,335,895,538 P16,493452.212 PI5,236,192.369
PRODUCTION COSTS (Note 22 3,452.138.359 6,435,153.765 0.483.703,064
COST OF SALES (Note 9) 479,417,099
GROSS PROFIT - i S,-‘_l(]t&.S#(),()SQ 10,058,298,447 8,752.489 308
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
{Note 23) 6,84’7,8! 8,011 6,3?.}5‘456,‘7")4 5,514,342 920
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) - NET
Foreign currency exchange gain (Joss) (Note 17) (47,623,776) (34,892,931} 19221601
Interest expense (Notes 17 and 27) (20,545,123} (35,595,345} {36,251.389)
Interest income (Note 6) 13,715,413 22,606,786 25,455,860
Fquity in net carnings of joint ventures (Note 11) 3,908,740 13,420,076 6351.690
Others - net (Note 25) 85,174,767 87,766,566 79,113,895
35,230,027 33,605,152 93,891,057
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX §,591,752,896 3,766 446 805 3332037442
PROVISION FOR (BENEFRFY FROM) INCOME TAX
{Noie 28)
areent 2,728,630,540 1,200,778,143 1,056,853,906
Defierred (144,232,767) (73,6007 858) (48,828,615}
2,584,417,7173 1,127,170,185 1,008,025,291
NET INCOM !"»1 0,007,334.323 2.639.276,620 2324012151
OTHER COMPREITENSIVE INCOME (1LOSS) ~
nct of ax
fremy wot (o be reclassified 1o profit or loss in !
subsequent periuds:
Nel changes in the fair market value of
financial assets at FVOCT (Note () (45,464,038) 2,805 891 (23,543,428)
Revatuation increment on land (Note 13) - 693,258,159
Remcasurement loss on retirement plans {(Note 26) (1,261,623,143) (300,697,741) (367,199,76%)
(1,307,087,181) (297.891.850) 302,514,966
TOTAL COMPREFENSIVE INCOME £4,700,247,142 32,341,384,770 #2.626,527.417
Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company £5,984,584,939 P2,618.460,766 P2,304,793,288
Non-controlling interests (Notg 2) 22,749,384 20,815,914 19,218,863
£6,007,334,323 £2,639,276,620 122 .324.012,151
Total comprehensive income attributable to: '
Equity holders of the Parent Company £4,680,682,828 P£2.320,788,743 £2,602,691,328
Non-controlling interests (Note 2) 19,564,317 20,596,027 23,835,789
24,700,247,142 P2.341384,770 22,626,527117
Basic / Diluted Earnings Per Sharve (Note 29) £1.231 B(.539 £0.474

See accompanying Notes (o Consolidated Financial Statements,
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GMA NETWORI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES :

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020, 2019 AND 2018

Equity Aiributabic 1 Eyuity Holdeos of the Parint Cowpany

Uadechying
Remuasareasent  Nub Uoveniced Shases vl the
Lesson 1oss on Acqitived
I ent oo Retiresmeni  Doancial Assels Phitippiag Noa-
Laad Plans at FYOCI Treasury Bepiasit coatrutling
-aet of tax - met of tax - nez of tax Retalned Luraings Stocks Receipts
Cagpiial {Notw 13) {Note 26) (Nowe 10} (Now 1 {Now 193 {Note 19} ptal [ Tutal Lguily
$1650035,196  BLTIGS05,188  (R1.358,318972) F2243454)  PRTIT238.68% (B28,483.471) (P3,790.616)  #9,586,433436 PT0.643,553  Po,63THTI 0N
- - - - - 5,984.584,93¢ - - 3,984,584,939 21745384 6,067 334,323
- - — {1.258,438,076) (45,463,038) - - - {13039021143 BA8306T5 USUTUSELISE
- - . - - {1458.059.531) = - {1,458,059,531) - (1.458,59,8315
= o - hod o had o ot bt (17,356,000
Fameinotoon | B1AS9035196  £171050318  (82.596.957448) 7. TieA%0)  P7.253.764.093 (F28,483.171) B5.T00810) B ESUDUS6, TR0 PE255],414,620
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSI’DIARIE:@

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
Z0Z0 20) 9 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income belore income tax £8,591,752,696 £3,766,446,805 £3,332,037.442
Adjustments to reconcile income before income tax to
net cash fows:
Program and other rights usage (Notes 8 and 22) 703,415,807 988,703,737 871,451,221
Pension expense (Note 26) 646,198,143 402,209,767 312,489,341
Depreciation (Notes 12, 14, 22, 23 and 27) 345,575,204 377,704,447 586,448,899
Provision for £CL {(Notes 7 and 23) 347,195,883 18,297,347 109,631,061
Contributions to retirement plan assets (Note 26) (259,000,000) (266,448,811 (279,003,770)
Amortization of software costs {Notes 15 and 23) 44,264,073 26,788,389 23,173,007
Net unrealized foreign currency exchange loss 27,377,082 30,284,446 5,185,384
fnterest expense (Notes 17 and 27) 20,545,123 55,595,345 36,251,389
Net gain on sale of property and equipment and
investment properties {(Notes 12, 14 and 25) (17,250,932) (21,368,209} (19,829,189)
Interest income (Note 6) (13,715,413 (22,906,786) (25,455,860
Fguity in net enings of joint ventures (Note 11) (3,908,740 (13,420,076) (6,351,690)
Dividend income (Notes 10 and 25) - (2,499.,895)
Provision for impairment of invesument
propertics (Note 14y = 2,048,592
Waorking capital changes:
Decreases (increases) in:
‘Trade and other receivables (5.589,407,239) (492,922,233) (128,392,550)
Program and other rights (607,591,883) (1,090,259,250) (462,548.125)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,005,413,947) (273.963,440) 41,054,711
{ncreases (decreases) in .
“I'rade payables and other current Habilitics 571,870,472 239,761,995 (230,194,344)
Obligations for program and other rights 45,873,277 18,449,846 {21,536,158)
Other long-term employee benelits 13,301,414 37.557.312 14,189,700
Benelits paid out of Group’s own funds (Note 26) (9,686.893) (7,955,884 (48,311,185
Cash flows provided by operations 3,957,093,524 3,972,554,747 4,109,837,981
Income laxes paid (1,464,143,968) (1,{13,334,541) {978,599,651)
Interest received 13,808,751 24,981,846 24,382,746
Net cash (lows (rom operating activities 2,506,758,307 2,884,202,052 3.155,621,076
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
Property and equipment {Note 12 (421,235,387 (673,419,792) (519,420,168)
Soltware costs (Note 13) (10,616,139 (65,484,770) (3,504,612)
Land at revalued amount {(Note [3) - - (7,593,293}
Proceeds {rom;
Sale of property and equipment (Note 12) 22,797,518 21,186,426 26,774,646
Sale of investment properties (Note 14) : 4,910,714 4,104,000
Decreases {increases) in other noncursent assets 55,903,451 (75,898,943) 87,562 847
Advances to an associate and joint ventures
(Notes [ 1 and 20) (848,826) (8,131,342) (1,162,148)

(borward)
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Years Ended December 3

2020 2019 2018
Cash dividends received B381,500 B P883.221
Return of investmient in {inancial asset at FVYOC]
{Note 10} - 6,089.790
Collection from an associate and joint ventures
(Nowes T and 20) - 401,778
Net cash flows used in investing aclivities (353,617,983) (796,837.709) {(405.863.939)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES ’
Procecds from availments of short-ferm loans
(Notes 17 and 32) 984,340,000 1,517,500,000 1,500,000,0600
Payments of’
Cash dividends (Notes 2, 19 and 32) (1,474,749,102) (2,198,159,065) (2,436,132,546)
Short-term toans (Notes (7 and 32) (641,895,600} (1,617,500,000} {1,500,000,000)
Principal portion of lease labilities
(Notes 27 and 32) (21,762,363} {21,694,663) -
inferest expense (Note 32) (12,856,998) (45,663,399 (36,125,000}
Net cash flows used in financing activities (1,166,923,463) (2,365,517,127) (2,472,257,546)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 986,216,961 (278,152,784} 277,499,391
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (26,371,353) {25,980,882) 1,767,236
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,2584,971,656 2,559,105,322 2,279,838,495
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR (Now 6) £3.214,817,264 $#2,254,971,656 £2,559,105,322

Neet aecompranping Notes 1o Consoliduted Pinancial Stateine s,
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 GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES |
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. Corporate information

GMA Network, Ine, (GNI or the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“the Group™) are incorporated in the Philippines. The Group is primarily involved in the business of
radio and television broadeasting. The Group is also involved in film production and other
information and entertainment-refated businesses. The Parent Company was registered with the
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June 14, 1950, On luly 20, 1995, the
Board of Directors (BOD) approved the extension of the corporate term of the Parent Company for
another 50 years from June 14, 2000. In 1997, the SEC approved the said extension.

The Parent Company’s shares of stock are publicly listed and traded in the Philippine Stock
Exchange.

The registered office address of the Parent Company is GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue comer
EDSA, Quezon City.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group were approved and authorized for
issuance by the BOD on March 26, 2021.

2. Basis of Preparation and Cousolidation, Statement of Compliance and Changes in Accounting
Policies and Disclosures

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVQCH) and land at
revalued amounts, which are measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Philippine peso, which is the Parent Company’s functional and presentation currency.
All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020, The Group controls an investee if, and only {f, the Group has!

»  Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to divect the relevant
activities of the investee);

& Exposure, or rights, to variable returng froi its involvement with the investee; and

» The ability to use its power over the investee to ai’fs:ct its returns.
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Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
a  Right arising from other contractual arrangements
s The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three efements of control,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the C()mpanly obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, labilities, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date the Company ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or foss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests (NCI), even if this results in the
NCT having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Parent Company’s accounting policies.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a foss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction,

If the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets (including
goodwill), liabilities, NCI and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Any investment retained is
recognized at fair value.

NCI represents the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held by owners of the Parent
Company and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
within equity in the consolidated statements of financial position, separately from equity attributable
to holders of the Parent Company, NCI shares in losses even if the losses exceed the non-controiling
equity interest in the subsidiary. NCI represents the equity interest in RGMA Network, Inc, (RGMA
Network), a subsidiary incorporated in the Philippines with principal place of business at GMA
Network Center, Timog Avenue corner EDSA Quezon City.

The consolidated financial statements include additional information about subsidiary that have NCI
that are material to the Parent Company. Management determined material partly-owned subsidiary
as those with greater than 5% of non-controlling interests and/or subsidiaries whose activities are
important to the Group as at end of the year.

Financial information of RGMA Network, a subsidiary that has material NCL are summarized below:

2020 2019
Proportion of equity interest held by NCI 1% 51%
Accumulated balances of material NCI £72,357.870 P70,643,553
Net income allocated to material NCI 22,749,384 20,815914
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The summarized financial information of RGMA Network are provided below.

“3-

:

Summarized Statements of Comprehensive Income

2020 2019 2018
Revenues £283,910,54¢6 £265,084,575 £230,920,784
Expenses (220,191,603)  (202,103,725)  (173.163.510)
Provision for income tax (19,112,367) (22,165,333) {20,073.228)
Net income o 44,606,636 40,815,517 37,684,046
Other comprehensive income
(loss) (6,245,230} 431,151 9,052,796
Totat comprehensive income P38,361,406 £40,384.366 £46,736,842
Net income atiributable to; »
NCI R22,749,384 £20,815914 £19,218,863
Parent Company 21,857,252 19,990 603 18,465,183
Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
NCH P19,564,317 £20,596,027 £23,835,789
Parent Company 18,797,089 19,788,339 22,901,053
Summarized Statements of Financial Position
2020 2019
Total current assets P232,111,479  £200,412398
Total nencurrent assets ' 36,449,915 26,175,579
Total current Habilities 42,339,392 24,643,602
Total noncurrent liabilities 84,343,827 63,427,604
Total equity 141,878,175 138,516,771
Atiributable to NC1 £72,357.870 £70,643,553
Attributable to equity holders of
the Parent Company £69,520,305 £67,873218
Summarized Cash Flows [nformation
2020 2019 2018
Operating (®7,293,612) P68,068,256 P15,115,005
Investing {4,846,596) (838,659) (97,865)
Financing (35,060,000 {25,000,000) 15,000,000
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents (847,140,208) - P£42,229,597 230,017,230

In 2020 and 2019, RGMA declared and paid dividends amounting to £17.85 million and
P12.75 million, respectively, to NCI.
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The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the following
subsidiaties as at December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Percentage

Principal Activities

Entertainment Business:

Afs Praductians Group, 1nc. {Alta) Pre and post-production services 100 -

Citynet Network Marketing and Television entertaibment production 0o -
Productions, Inc. (Citynel)

GMA Network Films, ne. Film production 160 -

GMA New Media, Inc. {GNMT) Converging technofogy 100 -

GMA Wortdwide (Philippines), ine.*  Internstional marketing, handling foreign program 160 -

acquisitions and international syndication of the Parent
Company’s programs

Scenarios, tne.¥* Design, cansisuction and maintenanee of sets for TV, stage 100 -
plays and concerts; transportation services
ROMA Marketing and Productions, inc.Musie recording, publishiog and video disiribution 100 -
RGMA Network Radio broadeasting and mapagement 49 -
Script2010, Inc. ¥¥* Design, construction and maintenance of sets for TV, stage - 100
plays and coneerts; ransportation and manpower
services

Advertising Business:
GMA Marketing & Productions, Bxctusive marketing and sates arny of Parent Company's o
Ine. (GMPRtess airtime, events management, safes implementation,
traffic services and monitoring
Crafting, planning and handling advertising and other forms 100
of promotion inchuding multi-media productions

Digify, Ing. ran®

(hers:
Media Merge Corporation? s Buginess development and operations for the Parent - 166
Company’s online publishing and advertising intiatives .
Ninja Ciraphics, hng ###¥sns Ceased comimescial opevations in 2004, - 51

“pased coonmerciol uperations in 2020
L nfer Hguidation

a3 diveetly owned Yirowgh Citvael
e conitieroiad operutions n 21 S
A fffrece{ss vacnid o (TN

P wdivectly owned drangh GNMI caased conmsecial apevations iv 2024
A5 divecty ovened dwougdt Alia; ceased commercial wperations i 6003

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosutes
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that
the Group has adopted the following new pronouncements starting January 1, 2020. The adoption of

these new standards and amendments did not have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Effective beginning on or after January [, 2020
Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, Definition of a Business

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that a
business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs,
These amendments may impact future periods should the Group enter into any business
combinations.

IEARRA TN



-5.

Amendments to PFRS 7, Financicl Instrumenis: Disclosures and PFRS 9, Finuncial Instruments,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to PFRS 9 provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships
that are directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is
affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainties about the tiniing and or amount of benchmark-
based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.

Amendments to Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Stalements,
and PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Definition of
Material

7

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states “information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.”

The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information,
either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial
statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued on March 29,2018

The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override
the concepts or requirements in any standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to
assist the standard-setters in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent
accounting policies where there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to
understand and interpret the standards.

The revised Conceptual Framework includes new concepts, provides updated definitions and
recognition criteria for assets and liabilities and clarifies some important concepts.

Amendments 1o PFRS 16, COFID-19-reluted Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying the PFRS 16 requirement oo fease
modifications to rent concessions arising as a divect consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. A
lessee may elect not to assess whether a rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification if it
meets all of the following criteria:

s The rent concession is a direct consequence of COVID-19,

= The change in lease payments resuits in a revised lease consideration that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the lease consideration immediately preceding the change;

s Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before
June 30, 2021, and

3

There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease,

A lfessee that applies this practical expedient will account for any change in lease payments
resulting from the COVID-19 related rent concession in the same way it would account for a
change that is not a lease modification, i.e, as a variable lease payment.

+
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The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020.
Early adoption is permitted.

The Group adopted the amendments beginning January 1, 2020. The amendment did not have an
impact in the consolidated financial statements as there were no rent concessions during the year.

New Accounting Standards, interpretations and Amendments to Existing Standards

Effective Subsequent to December 31, 2020
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on

its consolidated financial staterments. The Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements
when they become effective.

Effective beginning an or after Junuary 1, 2021

Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7, PFRS 4 and PFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Refornt -

Phase 2 )

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting

effects when an interbank offered rate (IBORY is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free

interest rate (RFRY:

w  Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows asa
result of IBOR reform

v Relief from discontinuing hedging relationships

Refief from the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as

a hedge of a risk component

The Group shall also disclose information about:

»  The about the nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed arising from financial
instruments subject to IBOR reform, and how the entity manages those risks; and

Their progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity
is managing that transition

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021
and apply retrospectively, however, the Group is not required to restate prior periods.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2022

Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framewark tor the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements, The amendments added an exception to the recognition principle of PFRS 3 to
avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2° gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities
that would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets or Philippine-International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 21,
Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to PFRS 3 to clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date,
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The amendments are effective for annual reparting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022
and apply prospectively.

Amendments to PAS 16, Plant and Equipment. Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment, any proceeds from selfing items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from sefling such items, and the costs of producing
those items, in profit or loss.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022
and must be applied retrospectively to items of property, piant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the
amendments.

Amendments 1o PAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cosis of Fulfilling a Coniract

The amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a
contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendiments apply a “directly related cost approach”.
The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental
costs and an allocation of cosis divectly related to confract activities, General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on ot after January 1, 2022,

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

s Amendment to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards,

Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter :

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS | to
measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the parent, based
on the parent’s date of transition to PFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate or
joint venture that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2022 with earfier adoption permitted.

Amendment to PERS 9, Financial Instruments, Fees in the ' 10 per cent’ test for
Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of
anew or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or fender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The Group will apply the amendments to

R .
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financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.

s Amendment to PAS 41, Agriculture, Taxation in Fair Value Meayurements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities exclude
cash flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of
PAS 41,

An entity applies the amendment prospectively to fair value measurements on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or atter January 1, 2022 with
earlier adoption permitted.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2023

e Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent
The amendiments clarify paragraphs 69 to 76 of PAS |, Presentation of Financial Statements, to
spectfy the requirements for classifying labilities as current or noncurrent. The amendments

clarity:
s What is meant by a right to defer settiement

= That a right to defer must exist af the end of the reparting period
= That classification is unatfected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right
w

That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible Hability is itself an equity fstrument
would the terms of a liability not impact jts classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January [, 2023
and must be applied retrospectively. The Group is currently assessing the jmpact the
amendments will have on current practice and whether existing loan agreements may require
renegotiation.

& PFRS V7, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace
PERS 4, Insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of
insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, divect insurance and re-insurance), regardiess of the type of
entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and {inancial instruments with
discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that

is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are

largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a

comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core

of PFRS 17 is the generat model, supplemented by:

= A specific adaptation for contracts with direct pasticipation features (the variable fee
approach)

v A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after lanuary 1, 2023, with

comparative flgures required. Early application is permitted.
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PFRS 17 is not applicable to the Group since it is not engaged in providing insurance nor issuing
INSUrance contracts.

Deferred effectivity

Amendments to PFRS (0, Conselidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribuiion
of Assels between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint
venture invelves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resuiting from the sale or
contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) deferred the original
effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting
Standards Board completas its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that
may result in the shimplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of
accounting for associates and joint ventures.

Semmary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in consolidated statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification.

An asset is current when it is:

expected 1o be realized or intended 1o be sold or consumed in norimal operating cycle,

held primarily for the purpose of trading;

expected to be realized within twelve months after the seporting period; or

cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
feast twelve months after the reporting period.

e e % ®

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
A liabifity is current when:

it is expected to be settied in normal operating cycle;

it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

there is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

e €& o @

All other liabilities are classified as noncurrent.
Defarred tax assets and Habilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities, respectively.

The Group also modifies classification of prior year amounts to conform to current year’s
presentation.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents ave short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less
from acquisition date and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Fair YValue Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value related
disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value or where
fair values are disclosed, are summarized in the following notes:

¢ Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions, see Note 4

e Quantitative disclosures of fair vafue measurement hierarchy, see Note 31

¢« Land, see Note 13

e Investment properties, see Note {4

e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost), see Note 31

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

»  in the principal market for the asset or liability; or »
» in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benetits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by setling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vajue
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial staterments on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have accurred between fevels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and labilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hieraschy as explained above,

“Day 17 Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the
transaction price and fair value (a “Day 17 difference) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income uniess it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where the data used is
not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in
profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1™ difference
amount.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that give rise to a financial asset of ene entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets ave classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost, FVOCL, and fair value through profit or foss (FVPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not ag FVPL, transaction costs, Trade veceivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or FVOCH, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ (SPP1) on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument
level,

The Group’s business mode! for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regzulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group commiis o purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

= financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
s financial assets at FVOCT with recycling of curnulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
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financial assets designated at FVOCH with no recyeling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition {equily instruments)
#  financial assets at FYPL

The Group does not have debt instruments at FVOCT and financial assets at FVPL as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Insiruments). The Group measures financial assets at
amortized dost if both of the following conditions are mef:

s The financial asset is held within a business mode! with the abjective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
$PPI on the principal amount outstanding,

%

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost includes cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and refundable deposits {included under “Other noncurrent assets” account inthe
consolidated statement of financial position) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 (see Notes 6, 7, 15
and 30).

Financial Assets Designated at FYOCH (Equity Instruments). Upon initial recogn ition, the Group can
elect to classify irrevocably ts equity investiments as equity instruments designated at FVOCI when
they meet the definition of equity under PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instroment-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognized as “Dividend income™ included under “Others - Net” account in the consolidated
staternent of comprehensive income when the right of payment has been established, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in OCL Equity instruments designated at FVOCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.

The Group elected to classify irrevocably under this category its fisted and non-listed equity
instruments and investment in quoted club shares as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 (see Notes 10
and 30).

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position) when:

s the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through® arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferved nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transterred control of the asset.
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When the Group has rransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of’
the asset, nor transferred contro} of the asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
lability. The transferred asset and the associated liabifity are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for ECLs for all débt instruments not held at FVPL. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss atlowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL),

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in caleufating ECLs. Therefore, the
Sroup does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic enviromment.

For other financial assets such as due from related parties and advances to associates and joint
ventures, the Group applies a general approach which measures ECL on either a [2-month or lifetime
basis depending on whether a significant increase in credit risks has occurred since initial recognition
or whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired, adjusted for the effects of collateral, forward-
looking factors and time value of money. !

For cash and cash equivalents, the Group applies the low credit visk simplification. At every
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk
using all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. In
making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit rating of the debt instrument or
comparable instruments.

The Group, in general, considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days
past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is untikely to veceive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off, in whole or in part, when the asset is considered uncollectible, the Group
has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded that it has no reasonable expectations
of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
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Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial Habilities are clagsified, at initial recognition, as
financial Hiabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables and other current liabilities (excluding
payable to government agencies, customers’ deposits and contract liabilities), short-term loans,
obligations for program and other rights, dividends payable and lease liabilitics.

Subscquent Measurement. The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their elassification, as
described below:

Financial Liabilities at F¥PL. Financial liabitities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial Tiabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial liabilities
are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This categoty also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by PFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading uniess they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on labilities held for trading are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition'at FVPL are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in PFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any
financial liability as at FYPL as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Loans and Borrowings. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process.

Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as “Interest expense” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

‘This category generally applies to trade payables and other current Jiabilities (excluding payable to
government agencies, customers’ deposits and contract liabilities), short-term loans, obligations for
program and other rights, dividends payable and lease liabilities (see Notes 16,17, 18, 19,27 and 30).

Derecognition of Finangial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial Hability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original Hability and the recognition of
a new lability. The difference in the respective carrying amouns is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Classification of Financial Instruments Between Liability and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

s deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity,;
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentiatly unfavorable to the Group; or

satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial asset
to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial Hability.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount afier
deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of issue. ’

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated

statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable fegal right to offset the recognized

amounts and there is an intention 1o settle on a net bagis, to realize the assets and settie the fiabilities

simultancously, The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is

not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
“default, and event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Group and all of the counterparties.

Program and Other Righis

Program and other rights with finite lives are stated at cost less amortization and impairment in value.
The estimated useful lives and the amortization method used depend on the manner and pattern of
usage of the acquired rights. The cost of program and other rights with multiple number of runs
within a specified term is amortized using straight line method up to the date of expiry.

From September |, 2019, the Group changed its accounting policy for amortizing the cost of program
and other rights with no definite expiration from accelerated method based on the sum of the year’s
digit of ten years. with salvage value of 10% of the total cost to straight-line method over ten years
based on the current book values so as fo allow recognition of amortization equally and to be
consistent with the method of amortizing program rights with multiple number of runs within a
specified term. Management takes the view that this policy provides reliable and more relevant
information because it is reflective of the pattern of consumption of program rights.

Amortization expense is shown as “Program and other rights usage” included under “Production
costs™ account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incorne.

For series of rights acquired, the cost is charged to profit or loss as each series is aired on a per
episode basis.

For rights intended for airing over the international channels, the cost is amortized on a straight-line
hasis over the number of years indicated in the contract.

Prepaid Production Costs

Prepaid production costs, included under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” account in the
consolidated statement of financial position, represent costs paid in advance prior to the airing of the
programs or episodes. These costs include talent fees of artists and production staff and other costs

directly attributable to production of programs. These are charged to expense under “Production
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costs” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income upon airing of the related
program or episodes. Costs related to previously taped episodes determined not to be aired are
charged to expense.

Inventories

Merchandise inventory and materials and supplies inventory, included under “*Prepaid expenses and
other current assets”™ account in the consolidated statement of financial position, is stated at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method. Net
realizable value of inventories that are for safe is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net realizable value of inventories not
held for sale is the current replacement cost.

Tax Credits

Tax credits represent claims from the government arising from airing of government commercials and
advertisements availed under Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1362. Pursuant to PD No, 1362, these
will be collected in the form of tax credits which the Group can use in paying for import duties and
taxes on imported broadeasting related equipment. The tax eredits cannot be used to pay for any
other tax obligation to the government.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group’s tax credits are classified as current under “Prepaid
expenses and other current assets”™ account in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Advances 1o Suppliers
Advances to suppliers, included under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets™ account in the

consolidated statement of financial position, are noninterest-bearing and are generaily applied to
acquisition of inventories, programs and other rights, availments of services and others.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except for land, are stated at cost, net of accum ulated depreciation and
amortization and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
property and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term consiruction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of property and equipment are requirved to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful fives and
depreciates them accordingly, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss
as incurred,

Land is measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses, if any, recognized after the date of
the revatuation. Valuations are generally performed every three to five years or more frequently as
deemed necessary to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount.

Any revaluation surplus is recarded in other comprehensive income and hence, credited to the
“Revaluation increment on land - net of tax” account under equity, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case, the
increase is recognized in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognized in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognized in the “Revaluation
increment on land - net of tax” account.
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Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives of the assets:

Buildings, towers and tmprovements {120 years
Antenna and transmitter systems and broadcast equipment 5-10 years
Communication and mechanical equipment 3-5 years
Transportation equipment 4-5 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

The assets’ residual vatues, useful Hves and methods of depreciation and amortization are reviewed at
each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortization is credited or charged to current operations.

Construction in progress is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction and other direct costs.
Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
put into operational use.

investment Properties
Investment properties consist of real estate held for capital appreciation and rental,

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction cosis. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties, except land, are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortization and impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-fine method over (1-20 years.

The remaining useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, it
appropriate, at each financial year-end.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the

-~ investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement o disposal of an investment
property are recognized in profit or loss in the period of desecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is
the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property
and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Investment in Artworks
Investment in artworks, included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated
statement of financial position, is stated at cost less any impairment in value. '
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Software Costs

Costs incurred in the acquisition and customization of new software, included under “Other
noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial position, ave capitalized and
amortized on a straight-line basis over three to ten years.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying values of program and other rights, prepaid production costs, deferred production costs,
tax credits, investments and advances, property and eqaipment, right-of-use assets, investment
propertics. sofiware costs and investment in artworks are reviewed for impaiment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. 1fany such
indication exists, and if the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are
considered impaired and are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
these nonfinancial assets is the greater of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair vajue less cost Lo
sell or value in use and is determined for an individual agset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. The fair value less
cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction less cost
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vatue
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows,
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
Impairment fosses, if any, are recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. if any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment Joss, except for
land at revalued amount where the revaluation is taken to OCI, is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
Joss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the
depreciation and amortization charges are adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount, fess any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. For
land at revalued amounts, the reversal of impairment is also recognized in OCl up to the amount of
any previous revaluation,

i the case of investments in associate and interests in joint ventures, after appfication of the equity
method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize any additional impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investments in associate and interests in joint ventures. The Group
determines at each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the investments in
associate and interests in joint ventures are impaired. 1f this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable amount of investments in
associate and interests in joint ventures, and the acquisition cost and recognizes the amount in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Investments in an Agsociate and Joint Ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.
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A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractualty agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing controb.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized at
cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group’s share of
net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date.

Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is not tested for impairment individually,

The Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture is included in profit or
loss. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group's OCL In addition,
when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealized gains and tosses resulting from transactions between the Group and the
associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture,

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on
the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income outside operating profit and
represents profit or loss after tax and NCI in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture.

If the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate or joint venture, the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those
of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in associate or joint venture, At each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is
impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then
recognizes the loss under “Equity in net earnings (losses) of joint ventures™ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint contro} over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred ditectly
attributable to the issuance of new sharves are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of
tax. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as
additional paid-in capital.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period results of operations as reported in the
consofidated statement of comprehensive income, net of any dividend declaration, adjusted for the
effects of changes in accounting policies as may be required by PFRS” transitional provisions.

,

Treasury Stocks and Underlying Shares of the Acquired Philippine Deposit Receipts (PDRs)

The Parent Company’s own reacquired equity instruments are deducted from equity. No gain or loss
is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issuance
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Fach PDR entitles the holder to the economic interest of the underlying common share of the Parent

Company. The Parent Company’s ownership of the PDRs are presented similar to treasury shares in
the consolidated stafement of financial position.

Dividends on Commen Shares of the Parent Company
Dividends on common shares are recognized as liability and deducted from equity when approved by

the BOD of the Parent Company. Dividends for the year that are approved after reporting period are
dealt with as an event after reporting period.

Revenue Recognition

a. PERS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group assesses its revenue
arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group
has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transtesring a
promised good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good
or service. A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The
amount of revenue recognized is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Advertising Revenue. Revenue is recognized in the period the advertisements are aired.
Payments received for advertisements before broadeast (pay before broadcast) are recognized as
income on the dates the advertisements are aired, Prior to liquidation, these are classified as
unearned revenue under “Contract labilities™ under “Trade payables and other current Habilities”
account, in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Goods received in exchange for airtime usage pursuant to exchange deal confracts executed

between the Group and its customers are recorded at fair market values of assets received. Fair
market value is the current market price.
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'
Tax credits on aggregate airtime credits from government sales availed of under PD» No. 1362 are

recognized as revenue when there is reasonable certainty that these can be used to pay duties and
taxes oh imported broadcasting related equipment.

Subscription Revenue. Subscription fees are recognized over the subscription period in
accordance with the terms of the subscription agreements.

Sule of goods. Sale of goods pertain to sale of set-top boxes, digital TV maobile receivers and
other merchandises. Revenue is recognized at a point in time when delivery has taken place and
transfer of control has been completed. These are stated net of sales discounts.

Revenue from Distribution and Content Provisioning. Revenue is recognized upon delivery of
the licensed content to customers.

Production Revenue. Production revenue is recognized at a point in time when project-refated
services are rendered.

Commission from Artist Center. Revenue is recognized as revenue on af accrual basis in
accordance with the terms of the related marketing agreements.

b. Revenue Recognition Outside the Scope of PFRS 1§

Rental Income. Revenue from lease of property and equipment and investment properties is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend [ncome. Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the inferest acerues, taking into sccount the effective
yield on the asset.

Equity in Net Earnings {Losses) of Joint Ventures. The Group recognizes its share in the net
income or loss of joint ventures proportionate to the equity in the economic shares of such joint
ventures, in accordance with the equity method.

Other ncome. Other income is recognized when there is an incidental economic benefit, other
than the usual business operations, that will flow to the Group through an increase in asset or
veduction in Hability that can be measured reliably.

Contract Bajances

Trade Receivables. A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).
Refer to the accounting policies of Financial Instruments section.

Contract dssers. A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or serv ices
wansferred to the customer. 1f the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract Liabilities. A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer

for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer, If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the
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customer, a contract Jiability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is duc,
whichever is eartier. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

Incremental Costs to Obtain a Contract

The Group pays sales commissions to ifs account executives for each contract that they obtain for
advertising agreements with customers. The Group has elected to apply the optional practical
expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the Group to im mediately expense sales
commissions (presented as part of “Marketing expense” under “General and administrative expenses”
account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income) because the amortization period of
the asset that the Group othetwise would have used is fess than one year.

Borrowing Costs '

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitatized as part of the
cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they oceur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Lxpenses

Expenses, presented as “Production costs”, “Cost of sales”, and “General and administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, are recognized as incurred.

Pension and Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Parent Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
permanent employees. Other entities are covered by Republic Act {R.A.) 7641, otherwise known as
“T'he Philippine Retirement Law”, which provides for qualified emp loyees to receive an amount
equivalent to a certain percentage of monthly salary at normal retivement age. In addition, the Group
has agreed to pay the cash equivalent of the accumulated unused vacation leave of the employees
upon separation from the Group, '

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit
credit method.

Defined Benefit Plans. The net defined benefit Hability or asset is the aggregate of the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair valie of plan
assets (if any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling.

The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under defined benefit plan is determined using the projected uanit credit
method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized
immediately in the statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:
'

e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

e The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benetit fability or asset.
The Group recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “Production
costs” and “General and administrative expenses” accounts in consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (by function):

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and fosses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements.

e Net interest expense or income

Plan assels are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund. Fair value of plan assets is
based on market price information. When no market price is available, the fair value of plan assets is
estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk
associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they
have no maturity, the expected period until the settiement of the related abligations). If the fair value
of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement
of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when retmbursement is
virtually certain.

{eases starting January 1 2019 - Upon Adoption of PFRS 16

Leases. The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, That is,
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration,

Group as Lessee. The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

o Right-of-use Assets, The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the
lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease Habilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
fiabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received and estimate of costs to be incurred by the
fessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is Jocated
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories. Unless the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life

and the lease term as follow: '
Land 2t0 12 years
Buildings, studio and office spaces 210 6 years
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Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

o Lease Liabilities. A the commencement date of the lease, the Graup recognizes lease Habilities
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) fess any lease
incentives receivable, variable fease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as
expense In the period on which the event of condition thal triggers the payment occurs.

In calcutating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

o Short-term Leases. The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-
term leases (i.e., those leases that have a tease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date or initial application of PFRS 16 and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognized as expense on a straight-ltine basis over the tease term.

Group as Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially ali the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases are
recoghized as income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are carned.

Leases before January 1. 2019 - Prior to Adoption of PFRS 16

The determination of whether the arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement depends on the use of a
specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys & right to use the asset. A reassessment is made
after the inception of the lease, if any, if the following applies:

a. There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

¢. There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or

d. There is substantial change to the asset.

Where the reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (), or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

The Group determines whether arrangements contain a lease 10 which lease accounting must be

applied. The costs of the agreements that do not take the legal form of a lease but convey the right to
use an asset are separated into lease payments if the entity has the contro! of the use or access to the
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asset. or takes essentially alf of the outputs of the asset. The said lease component for these
arrangements is then accounted for as finance or operating lease.

g

Group as Les Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases, Operating lease payments are recognized as
expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

Group as Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases are
recognized as income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-tine basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency exchange rate at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retransiated at the functional currency closing exchange rate at financial reporting period. Al
differences are taken to profit or loss in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. For income tax purposes, foreign exchange gains and losses are treated as taxable
income or deductible expenses when realized.

Taxes

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and fax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at reporting
period,

Current income tax refating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in
profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations i which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of
excess minimum corporate income tax (MCLT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused
net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefits of excess
MCIT over RCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized, except:

e  where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the, transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and
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e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets ave recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temperary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to altow all or part of
the deferred tax assets to be viilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed af cach
reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax labiities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not 4 business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlied and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseesble future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is reatized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws to be enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax refating to items recognized outside profit or foss is recognized outside profit or foss.
Deferred tax items recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC1 or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assels against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxabie entity and the
same taxation authority.

Creditable Withholding Taxes. Creditable withholding taxes represent amounts withheld by the
Group’s customers and is deducted from the Group’s income tax payable.

Value-added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if
applicable.

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from
purchases of goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input
VAT) exceeds VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

‘The niet amount of VAT recoverable from, o payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of

“Prepaid expenses and other current assets” or “Trade payables and other current liabifities™ accounts
in the consdlidated statement of financial position.
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Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the equity holders of
the Parent Company, net of income attributable to preferred shares, by the weighted average num ber
of comnion shares outstanding during the year, after considering the retroactive adjustments for any
stock dividends declared, if any.

Diluted £PS is caleulated by dividing the net income fdr the year attributable to the equity holders of
the Parent Company {inclusive of income attributable to preferred shares) by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted average number of
comimon shares that would be issued upon conversion of all ditutive potential comman shares.

Segment Repaorting

For management purposes, the Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately
into television and radio aictime, international subscriptions and other business activities. Such
business segments are the basis upon which the Group reports its primary segment information. The
Group considers television and radio operations as the major business segment. The Group operates
in two geographical areas where it derives its revenue, Financial information on business segments is
presented in Note S to the consolidated financial statements. ‘

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or coustructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying aconomic benefits will be
vequired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for exam ple, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

Contingencies _

Contingent labilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
in the notes to consolidated financial siatements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Fvents after Reporting Period

Past year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the reporting
period (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when
material.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
related notes at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these judgments,
estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset or Hability affected in future periods.
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Judements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

Consolidation of Entities in which the Group holds less than Majority of Voting Rights. The Group
considers that it controls RGMA Network even though it owns less than 56% of the voting rights.
This is because the Group is the single Jargest shareholder of RGMA Network with a 49% equity
interest. The remaining 51% of the equity shares in RGMA Network are owned by several parties.
Since September 27, 1995, which is the date of incarporation of RGMA Network, there is no history
of the other sharehalders collaborating to exercise their votes collectively or to outvote the Group.
The carrying amount of NC1 as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are £72.36 million and

£70.64 million, respectively.

Assessment of Significant Influence over the lavestee. The Parent Corapany folds 25% ownership
interest in Optima Digital, Inc. as at December 31, 2020 and 2019. Even with more than 20% voting
rights, management assessed that the Parent Company does not have the power to participate in the
policy-making processes, including decisions to affect its returns in the form of dividends. Further,
the Parent Company does not have the ability to participate in the financial and operational policies
decision-making of the investee to affect its relevant activities.

Determination of Lease Term of Contracts with Renewal and Termination Oplions — Group as a
Lessee (Starting Jemuary 1, 2019 - Upon Adoption of PFRS 16). The Group determines the lease
term as the non-canceliable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to
extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, il it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group
applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option
to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an econom ic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or o terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset).

The Group did not include the renewal period as part of the lease term for its leases as these are
subject to mutual agreement and are not reasonably certain to be exercised. Furthermore, the periods
covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term because they are reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

Operating Leases - Group as Lessor. The Group has entered into various lease agreements as lessor,
The Group had determined that the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying property were
retained by the Group. Accordingly, the leases are classified as an operating lease.

Total rental incame amounted to B6,89 million, £8.56 million and £8.27 million in 2020, 2019 and
2018, respectively (see Note 25).

Operating Leases - Group as Lessee (Prior 1o January 1, 2019 - Prior to Adoption of PFRS 16). The
Group has entered into various lease agreements as a lessee. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that the lessors retain all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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Rental expense charged to operations amounted to £927.34 million in 2018 (see Notes 22, 23 and 27),

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
“due to market changes of circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Estimating the Incremental Borrowing Rate (Starting January 1, 2019 - Upon Adoption of PFRS 16).
The Group cannot readity determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease Habilities. The 1BR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when they need o be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
fease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity~specific estimates (such as the counterparty’s stand-
alone credit rating).

The Group’s lease liabilities amounted to #76.86 million and £105.79 miltion as at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 27).

Estimating Allowance for ECL. The foltowing information explaing the inputs, assumptions and
techniques used by the Group in estimating ECL for trade receivables:

= Simplified approach for trade receivables

The Group uses a simplified approach for calculating ECL on trade receivables through the use of

PR . =) o r.t ! 2 1
provision matrix to calculate ECLs. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.c., by customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The
Group then calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (e.g., gross domestic product,
inflation rate, unemployment rate} are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults in the Group’s operating segments, the historical default vates are
adjusted. Atevery reporting date, the historical abserved default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

Definition of default for trade receivables

The Group defines a trade receivable as in default, when it meets one or more of the following
criteria:

o The counterparty is experiencing financial difficulty or is insolvent

s The receivable is more than 360 days past due. The determination of the period is based on
the Group’s practice and agreement with their customers within the industry.
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Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group considers a range of relevant forward-looking macro-gconomic assumptions for the
determination of unbiased general industry adjustments that support the calculation of ECLs. A
broad range of forward-looking information are considered as economic inputs such as the gross
domestic product, inflation rate, unemployment rates and other economic indicators.

The macroeconomic factors are atigned with information used by the Group for other purposes
such as strategic planning and budgeting.

The Group identifies and documents key drivers of credit risk and credit losses of each portfolio
of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships
between macro-economic variables and credit risk and eredit losses.

Predicted relationship between the key macro-economic indicators and default and loss rates on
various portfolios of financial assets have been developed based on analyzing historical data over
the past 5§ years. The methodologies and assumptions including any forecasts of future economic
conditions are reviewed regularly.

Grouping of instruments for losses measured on collective basis

For expected credit loss provisions modelled on a gollective basis, a grouping of exposures s
performed on the basis of shared risk characteristics, such that risk exposures within a
segmentation are homogeneous. The Group segmentized its receivables based on the type of
customer (&.g., corporate and individuals).

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLSs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future.

Provision for ECL amounted to £347.20 million, #18.30 million and #109.63 million in 2020,
2019 and 2018, respectively (see Notes 7 and 23). The allowance for ECL amounted to
£766.52 million and R549.64 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables amounted to P10,466.54 million and
£5.257.15 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 7.

Classification and Amortization of Program and Other Rights. Portions of program and other rights
are classified as current and noncurrent assets. Current portion represents those expected to be aired
any time within its normal operating cycle, whereas the noncuyrent portion represents those without
definite expiration.

From September I, 2019, the Group changed its accounting policy for amortizing the cost of program
and other rights with no definite expiration date from accelerated method based on the sum of the
year’s digit of ten years with salvage value of 10% of the total cost to straight-line method over ten
years based on the current book values so as to aliow recognition of amortization equally and to be
consistent with the method of amartizing program rights with multiple number of runs within a
specified term, Management takes the view that this policy provides reliable and more relevant
information because it is reflective of the patiern of consumption of the program rights.
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The Group estimates the amortization of program and other rights with {inite lives using straight line
method up to the date of expiry and those with no definite expiration date of up to ten years, which is
the manner and pattern of usage of the acquired rights. In addition, estimation of the amortization of
program and other rights is based on the Group’s experience with such rights. 1t is possible, however,
that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by
changes in the factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period
would he atfected by changes in these factors and circumstances.

Program and other rights usage amounted to £703.42 million, P988.70 mitlion and #871.45 million in
2020. 2019 and 2018, respectively (see Notes 8 and 22). Program and other rights, net of
accumulated impairment in vatue of £2.70 million, amounted to £942.97 million and

P1.038.79 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 8).

Estimating Allowance for Inventory Losses. The Group provides allowance for inventory fosses
whenever the net realizable value becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration,
obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes. The allowance account is reviewed
periodically to reflect the accurate valuation of the inventories.

The carrying value of merchandise inventory and materials and supplies inventory, included under
“Prepaid expenses and other current assets™ account in the consolidated statement of financial
position, amounted to #237.05 million and £12.76 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively (see Note 9). There were no provisions for inventory fosses in 2020, 2019 and 2018.

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment, Software Costs and Invesiment Properties.

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment, software costs and investment
properties based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The
estimated useful tives of property and equipment, software costs and investment properties are
reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical
wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.
in addition, estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment, software costs and investment
properties is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and
experience with similar assets, Itis possible, however, that future results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above,
The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these
factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment,
software costs and investment properties would increase the recorded general and administrative
expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.

There has been no change in the Group’s estimate of useful lives of its property and equipment,
software costs and investment properties in 2020 and 2019,

Total depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,
amounted to 2558.06 million, ?573.83 million and P609.62 million, respectively (see Notes 12, 14,
15, 22 and 23).

Revaluation of Land. The Group engages an accredited appraiser to defermine the fair value of'the
fand used in operations. Fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence adjusted
based on certain elements of comparison. The fair value amount would differ if the Group made
different judgments and estimates or utilized a different basis for determining fair value.

Valuations from an accredited appraiser are generally performed every three to five years or more

frequently as deemed necessary to ensure that the fair value of a reval ued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount.
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In 2020 and 2019, there were no additional revaluation increment on land due to insignificant
movements in the fair value of the land. There is a revaluation increment on land in 2018 amounting
to P990.37 million. The revalued amount of land, which is classified under “Property and
equipment” account in the statements of financial position, amounted to $2,803.20 million as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 (see Notes 13 and 31).

Impatrment of Nonfinancial Assels. For prepaid production costs, tax credits, investments and
advances, property and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties, program and other
rights, investment in artworks, deferred production costs and software costs, impairment testing is
performed whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable.

The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the
following:

significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business;

s significant negative industry or economic trends; and

e obsolescence or physical damage of an asset.

The Group recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell or asset’s
value in use. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the
CGU to which the asset belongs. ,

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group did not identify any indicator of impalrment on its
nonfinancial assets, hence, no impairment tests were carried out.

The carrying values of nonfinancial assets as at December 31 follow:

2020 2019
Land at revalued amounts (see Note 13) £2,803,196,184 £2,803,196,184
Property and eguipment - at cost (see Note 12) 2,588,113,704  2,695,162,487
Program and other rights (see Note 8) 942,966,008 1,038,789.,929
Prepaid production costs (see Note 9) 428,553,144 282,840,960
Investments and advances (see Note 1) 184,524,315 179,766,749
Tax credits {see Note 9) 174,199,496 58,699,529
Software costs (see Note 15) 97,071,541 120,396,750
Right-of-use assets (see Note 27) 89,268,276 129,802,186
Investment properties (see Note 14) 34,869,834 36,252,221
investment in artworks (see Note 15) 10,186,136 10,186,136
Deferred production costs (see Note 15) 1,661,628 1,088,162

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no fonger probabte that
sufficient taxable profit wifl be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset o be utilized.
The Group’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary difference
and carryforward benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT over RCIT is based on the projected taxable
income in the following periods.
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Recognized deferred tax assets amounted to B1,932.25 million and #1,246.43 million as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, while unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to
B8.56 million and £4.95 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 28),

Pension and Other Employee Benefits. The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of
pension benefits is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating
such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 26 and include, among others, discount rate
and salary increase rate. Due to the complexity of the valuation and its long-term natuve, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

Pension liability amounted to 24,915.13 mittion and £2,733.59 million as at December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively (see Note 26).

Derermination of Fair Value of Financial Assets at FYOCI. Financial assets at FVOCT are carried
and disclosed at fair value, which requires extensive usg of accounting estimates and judgments.
When the fair values cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these models is taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. The fair value of financial assets at FVOC! are enumerated in
Note 31.

Determination of Fair Value of Investment Properties. PFRS requires disclosure of fair value of
investment properties when measured at cost.

The Group used the services of an independent professional appraiser in estimating the fair value of
properties. The appraisers conducted an actual inspection of the property and considered the
folfowing in the study and analyses in arriving at the estimate of fair value: (&) extent, character and
utitity of the property: (by sales and holding prices of similar properties; and (¢) highest and best use
of the property. The description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to fair valuation of
investment properties are enumerated in Note 14 of the consolidated financial statements.

Contingencies. The Group is currently involved in various claims and legal proceedings. The estimate
of the probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with legal
counsel handling the defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential resuits. The
Group currently does not believe that these proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the
Group’s financial position.

Segment Information .

Business Segments
For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on its products and
services and has three reportable segments, as follows:

x  The television and radio segment, which engages in television and radio broadcasting activities
and which generates revenue from sale of national and regional advertising time.
&

The international subscription segment which engages in subscription amangements with
international cable companies.
Other businesses which include movie production, consumer products and other services.
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The Fxecutive Committee, the chief operating decision maker, and Management monitor the
operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
aflocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on net income or
loss and is measured consistently with the net income or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

On a consolidated basis, the (noup s performance is evaluated based on consolidated net income for
the year.

CGeographical Segments

The Group operates in two major geographical segments - local and international, Local refers to
revenues earned in the Philippines, the home country. Significant portion of the revenues earned
focally pertain to television and radio airtime. International refers to revenues earned in United States
and in other locations (which include Middle East, Europe, Australia, Canada, Guam, Singapore,

Hongkong and Japan). The Group ties up with cable providers to bring local television programming
outside the Philippines.

The Group’s revenues are mostly generated in the Philippines, which is the Group’s country of
domicile.

Noncurrent assets consist of property and equipment, land at revalued amounts, investment properties
and intangible assets which are all located in the Philippines.

The Group does hot have a single external customer whose revenue accounts for 10% or more of the
Group’s revenues.

inter-segment Transactions

Segment revenues, segment expenses and segment results include transfers among business segments
and among geographical segments. The transters are accounted for at competitive market prices
charged to unrelated customers for simitar services, Such transfers are chmmatc,d upon consolidation.

Measurement Basis

The amount of segment assets and Habilities and segment profit or toss are based on measurement
principles that are snmhu' to those used in measuring the assets and labilities and profit or loss in the
consolidated financial statements, which is in accordance with PFRS.
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6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2620 2019
Cash o hand and in banks ‘ £2.892,545,.281  P1.852,507.801
Short-term deposits 322,271,983 402,463,855

83214,817,264 P2254 971 656

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates, Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn (nterest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from bank deposits and short-term deposits amounted to 13,72 million,
£22.91 miltion and £25.46 million in 2020, 2019 and 20(8, respectively.

7. Trade and Other Receivables

2020 2019
Trade:
Television and radio airtime B10,642,475,608  £5,227,766,620
Subscriptions 264,493,491 386,954,129
Others 169,931,862 183,958,408
Nontrade: .
Advances to officers and employees 6,866,866 5,913,890
Others (see Note 20) 149,288,785 2,194 508
o 11,233,656,009  5,806,787,555
f.ess allowance for ECL 766,518,314 549,639,602

P10,466,537,695 £5,257.147,953

Trade Receivables

Television and Radio Airtime. Television and radio airtime receivables are unsecured, noninterest-

bearing and are normally collected within 360 days. Invoicing normally takes around 30 days from
airing.

Television and radio airtime receivables include unbilled aittime receivables, arising when
advertisements have been aired but billing or acceptance by the customer has been delayed due to
time lag in completing all required documents,

Subscriptions Receivable, Subscriptions receivable pertain to receivables from international channel

subscriptions and advertisements. These are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and normally collected
within 360 days.

Other Trade Receivables. Other trade receivables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are
generally on 60-90 day terms upon receipt of invoice by the customers.

Nonirade Recetvables

Advances to Officers and Employees and Other Nontrade Receivables. Advanees 1o officers and
emplayees and other nontrade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are normally collected within
the next financial year.

L



Allowance for ECL, on Trade Recejvables
The movements in the allowance for BCLs are as follows:

237 .

2020
Corporate Individual Total
Balance at beginning of year £539,184,505 210,455,097 £349,639,602
Provision {reversal) for the year
{see Note 23) 347,341,442 (145,559) 347,195,883
Writeoff (136,317.171) - (130,317,171
Balance at end of year P£756,208,776 £10,309.538 B766,318,314
2019
. Corporate individual Total
Balance at beginning of year R517,554,094 213,788,161 P531,342,255
Provision (reversal) for the year
{see Note 23) 21,630,411 (3,333,064) 18,297,347
Balance at end of year £539,184,505 210,455,097 549,639,602
Program and Other Rights
Detaiis and movement in this account are as follows:
2029
Program Story/Tormat Program Rights -
Rights Rigrhts tncidentals Total
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year 2983,996,591 £30,699,307 £26,796,291 £1,041,492,189
Additions 336,438,931 6,724,630 64,428,322 607,591,883
Program and other rights
usage {see Nole 22) (626,022,128) (10,276,493 (67,117,186} (703,415,807)
Balance at end o) year 894,413,394 27,147,444 24,107,427 945,668,265
Accumulated impainnent in vatue {2,702,260) . - - (2,702,260)
89{,711,134 27,147,444 24,107,427 942,966,608
1ess noncurrent postion 192,229,776 - - 192,229,776
Clurrent porton £699,481,358 £27,147,444 224,107,427 750,736,229
2019
Program Story/Format  Program Rights -
Riphs Rights tncidentals Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year PY17.873.774 P5,219,240 216,843,662 939,936,676
Additions 985,927,729 25,480,067 78,851,454 1,090,256,250
Program and other rights
wsage (see Note 22) (919,804.912) - (68,898,825} (988,703,737}
Balance at end of year 683,996,591 , 30,699,307 26,796,291 1,044,492 189
Accumulated impaitment in vaiue (2,702,260} — - (2,702,260)
981,294,331 30,699.307 26,796,291 1,038,789.929
L.ess noncurvent portion 196,376,347 -~ - 196,376,347
Current portion PT84 917,084 230,699,307 £26,796,291 P84 413,582
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9.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

2020

2019

Advances to suppliers (see Note 27)
Prepaid production costs
Merchandise inventory

nput VAT

Tax credits

Prepaid expenses

Creditable withholding taxes
Materials and supplies inventory
Othets

P844,130,982
428,553,144
229,554,349
161,786,897
174,199,496

82,521,474
55,821,536
16,500,558

266,638,047
282,840,960

134,200,895
58,699,529
99,951,719
61,900,171
12,756,017

252,876
$2,014,315,306

1,908,021
918,901,359

Advances to suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are generally applied to acquisition of program and
other rights, inventories, availment of services and others within the next financial year.

Prepaid production costs represent costs paid in advance prior to the airing of the programs or
episodes. The Group expects 1o air the related programs or episodes within the next financial year.

Merchandise inventory consists mainly of set-top boxes, digital TV maobile receiver and other
merchandises for sale by the Group. In 2020, the Group launched the GMA Affordabox, a digital box
which allows users to receive clear pictures and sounds in their television sets through digital
transmission. Cost of sales related to digital boxes amounted to #479.42 million in 2020

Input VAT pertains to VAT on purchase or importation of goods and services which are to be
claimed and credited in the succeeding month’s filing of VAT retutn.

Tax credits represent claims of the Parent Company from the government avising from airing of
government commercials and advertisements, The Pavent Company expects to utilize these tax
credits within the next financial year,

-
Prepaid expenses include prepayments for rentals, insurance and other expenses.

Creditable withholding taxes represent amounts withheld by the Group’s customers and is deducted
from the Group’s income tax payable.

Materials and supplies inventory includes the Group’s office supplies, spare parts and production
materials.

. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprebensive Income

This account consists of the following:

) 2020 2019
Listed equity instruments $117,273,005 $£175,669,513
Non-listed equity instruments 74,859,083 67,763,547

2192,132,088 2243 433,060
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Investment in equity instruments pertains to shares of stock and club shares which are not held for
trading. The Ciroup assessed the equity instruments to be strategic in nature.

The movement of financial assets at FVYOCI are as follows:

2028 2019

Balance at beginning of year P243,433.060 £240,255,846
Unreatized gain (loss) on fair value changes during

the year (31,300,972 3,177,214

Balance at end of year P192,132,088 P243.433,060

Dividend income earned from financial assets at FVOCT amounted to nil in 2020 and 2019 and
£2.50 million in 2018,

The movements in net unrealized loss on financial assets at FVOCI are as follows:

2020 2019
Balance at beginning of year - net of tax (#2,245,454) (£5,051,345)
Net unrealized gain (Joss) on fair value changes
during the year (51,300,972 3,177,214
Tax effect of the changes in fair market values ) 5,836,934 (371,323)
Balance at end of year (£47,709,492) (P2,245.454)

1P E-Games Ventures. inc.

In 2015, 1P E-Games Ventures, Inc. (IPE) issued 13,000.00 million of its own common shares to the
Group in exchange of the Group’s investment in X-Play Online Games Incorporated (X-Play) and in
settiernent of £30.00 million advances and R50.00 mitlion aittime credits granted by the Group to X-
Play. At initial recognition, the Group recognized at fair value the IPE shares amounting to
£130.00 mitlion,

Of the £50.00 miflion airtime credits, P22.00 million has not been implem ented at the date of
exchange and therefore was recognized by the Group as unearned revenue presented as “Contract
liabilities”, included as part of “Trade payables and other current fiabilities” in 2020 and 2019
(see Note {6).

i 1. Investiments and Advances

The following are the details of this account:

2020 2019
Investment in an associate and interests in joint
ventures £83,982,574 280,073,834
Advances to an associate and joint ventures \
{see Note 20) 100,541,741} 99,692,915

$£184,524,315 £179,766,749
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The movements in the account are as follows:

2020 2019
Investment in an associate and interests in joint ' '
ventures:
Acquisition cost -
Balance at beginning and end of year 131,722,056 R131,722,056
Accumulated equity in net losses: ’
Balance at beginning of year {51,648,222) (65,068.298)
Equity in net carnings during the vear 3,908,740 13,420,076
Balance at end of year . (47,739,482) (51,648,222)
83,982,574 80,073,834
Advances to an associate:
Balance at beginning of year 97,121,830 89,017,031
Advances during the vear {see Note 20) 630,186 8,104,799
Batance at end of year 97,722,016 97,121,830
Advances to joint ventures: ’
Batance at beginning of year 2,571,085 2,544,542
Advances during the vear {(see Note 20) 248,640 26,543
Balance at end of year 2,819,725 2,571,085
Total investments and advances P184,524,315 P179,766,749

The ownership interests in joint ventures and an associate, which were all incorporated in the
Philippines, and are accounted for under the equity m ethod, as at December 31, 2020 and 2019

fotlows:

Principal Activities

Percentage of
Ownership

Associate -
Mont-Aire Realty and Development

Direct Indirect

Corporation (Mont-Aire) Real Estate 49 -
Joint Ventures:
INQ7 Interactive, [nc. (INQ7)* internet Publishing 50 -
Philippine Entertainment Portal (PEP)**  Internet Publishing 50
Gamespan, inc. (Gamespan)** Betting Games 50
*Not operationad.
M ndirect investment through GNMI.
The carrying values of investments and the refated advances are as follows:
2028
Advances
investments {Note 20) Total
Associate -
Mont-Aire £38,350,619 £97,722,016 P136,072,635
Joint ventures: '
Gamespan 8,947,966 1,959,670 10,967,636
PEP 36,683,089 860,855 37,544,044
45,631,988 2,819,725 48,451,680
283,982,574 £100,541 ;741 Pi184.524,3158
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: 2019
Advances
Investments (Note 20) Total
Associate - ’
Mont-Adre £38,350,619 £07.121,830 £135,472,449
Joint ventlures:
Gamespan 8.947.966 1,959,670 10,907,636
PEP 32,775,249 611415 33,386,664
41.723,215 2,871,085 44,294,300

£80,073,834 99,692,915 £179.766,749

The associate and joint ventures are not listed in any public stock exchanges.

PEP

On April 16,2007, the Group and Suminit Publishing, Co. entered into a shareholder’s agreement for
the establishment of PEP. The joint venture was organized to design, conceptualize, operate and
maintain websites that make available all kinds of show business, entertainment and celebrity
information, video or pictures in the internet worldwide web or other forms of seamless
communication.

The Group recognized its share in net earnings of PEP amounting to £3.91 million, B13.42 miilion
and P6.35 million in 2020, 2016 and 2018, respectively.

On March 22, 2012, the Group, through GNMI, executed a Shareholder’s Agreement with Manila
Jockey Club (MSC) for the establishment of Gamespan, a joint venture corporation. The joint venture
was organized to operate and manage the hardware and software owned by MJC, set-up new media
infrastructure for offering and taking bets in horse racing and other sports.

Gamespan has not started its commercial operations since its establishment. In 2014, the Group and
MIC agreed to terminate its shareholder’s agreement and to close Gamespan, As at December 31,
2020, the process of cessation of Gamespan is ongoing. Since Gamespan already ceased its
operations, the Group did not recognize any share in net earnings in 2020, 2019 and 2018,

INQ7

Losses of INQ7 recognized under the equity method in excess of the Group’s carrying value of
investment were applied against its advances to the Parent Company thereby reducing both
advances and investments to zero as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, INQ7 ceased operations in
2007, tn 2013, INQ7 submitted a request to liquidate its assets to SEC. The liquidation is still
ongoing as at December 31, 2020,

The Group believes that its interests in joint ventures are not individually material, Aggregate
information of joint ventures that are not individually material are as follows:

2020 2019 2018

The Group’s share in income /

total comprehensive income £3,908,740 P13,420,076 £6,351,690
Aggregate carrying value

of the Group's interests

and advances 48,451,681 44,294,300 30,847,681

R



Mont-Aire

The table below chaws the condensed financial information of Mont-Aire as at December 31, 2020
and 2619;

Current assets

59,665,203

Noncurrent assets Q7619616
167,284,819

Current fiabilities 1,066,320
Noncurrent iabilities 105,691,504
’ 106,757,824
Net assets 60,526,995
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 49%
Carrving amount of investment 29 .658,228

Mont-Aire ceased its commercial operations in 2009, Assets include real estate and parcels of land
with an aggregate cost of 105,08 million and fair market value of P158.64 mitlion, as determined by
an accredited appraiser as at June 3, 2019, enough to cover for the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in Mont-Aire. Management believes that there are no events or changes in circumstances
indicating a significant unfavorable change in the fair value of the abovementioned properties from
the last appraisal made.

R TSR
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Construction in progress pertains to costs incutred for instaliation of equipment, signal strengthening
of transmitters nationwide and construction/improvement of studios and stations in the regions.

The reclassification relates to the cost of low-value assets amounting to P0.16 million in 2019 and
software that were transferred to other noncurrent assets amounting to £6.32 mitlion and
R£0O.15 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 15),

The Group teases out a portion of its property and equipment at cost. Total rental income recognized
for the leased portion amounted to $2.95 million, P4.11 mitlion and £3.03 million in 20620, 2019 and
2018, respectively (see Note 25).

The Group disposed various property and equipment in 2020, 2019 and 20138 resulting to the
recognition of gain on sale amounting to P17.25 million, R18.79 million and £22.47 million,
respectively (see Note 25).

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, no property and equipment have been pledged as collateral or
security for any of the Group’s liabilities. '

., Land at Revalued Amounts

The following are the details of this account as at December 31, 2020 and 2019;

Cost P359.617,345
Revaluation increment 2,443 578 839

£2,803,196,184

Land used in operations was last appraised on November 19, 2018 by an accredited firm of appraisers
and is valued in terms of its highest and best use. While the fair value of the land was not determined
as at December 31, 2020, the Group’s management believes that the fair values as at December 31,
2018 approximate the fair values as at December 31, 2020,

The fair value was determined using the “Market Data Approach”™ as determined by independent
professionally qualified appraisers. The fair value represents the amount that woulid be received to
sell the property in an orderly transaction between market participants at the date of valuation. The
description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

Significant
Valuation Technigue Unobservable Inputs Range
Land Market comparable assets Price per square metre R200-P97.000

The fair value is categorized under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and represents the price that
would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date in accordance with International Valuation Standards.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, no land has been pledged as collateral or security for any of the
Group’s liabilities and the Group has no restrictions on the realizability of its tand and no contractual
obligation fo purchase, construct or develop land or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.



i4. Envestinent Properties

20620

Land and

Buildings and

Improvements fmprovements Total
Cost: i ‘
Balance at beginning and end of year £23,761,823 $£72,276,684 £96,038,507
Accumulated depreciation: . o ’
Ralance at beginning of year - 58,933,645 85,933,645
Depreciation during the year
(see Note 23} - 1,382,387 1,382,387
Balance at end of year - 57,316,032 57,316,032
Accumulaied impairment:
Bakance at beginning and
end of year - 3,852,641 3,852,641
' $23,761,823 P11,108,011 $34,869,834
2019
Land and Butldings and
[mprovements lmprovernents Totad
Cost:
Balance at heginning of year P23.761,823 P77.028321 P100,790,144
Disposals - (4,751,637) {(4,751,637)
Balance at end of year 23.761.823 72,276,684 56,038,507
Accumulated depreciation; ’
Balance at beginning ol year 56.933,319 56,933,519
Depreciation during the year
(see Note 23) - 1,421,877 1,421,877
Disposals - (2,421,751} {2,421,751)
Balance at end of yvear 55,933,645 55 933,643
Accumulated impairment:
Balance at beginning and end of
vear 3,852,041 3.852,641
Balance at end ol year 23,761,823 $12,490,398 16,252,221

The Group disposed investment properties in 2019 resulting to the recognition of gain on sale
amounting to B2.58 million (see Note 25).

The Group recognized provision for impairment in value of certain investment properties amounting
to P2.05 million in 2018. Management believes that the carrying values after impairment
approximate its recoverable vaiues,

The fair value of investment properties owned by the Group amounted to P203.90 miflion as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019. The land was last appraised on November 19, 2018 by an accredited
appraiser and was vatued in terms of its highest and best use. The fair value of the Jand was not
determined as at December 31, 2020, While the fair value of the land was not determined as at
December 31, 2020, the Group’s management believes that the fair values as at December 31, 2018
approximate the fair values as at December 31, 2020.

The fair value was determined using the “Market Data Approach”. The fair value represents the

amount that would be received to self the property in an orderly transaction between m arket
participants at the date of valuation.
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The description of the valuation techniques used and key inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

Significant
_ Valuation Technigue _ Unobservable Inputs Range
Land Market comparable assets  Price per square metre £1,400-83,500

Buildings for lease  Market comparable assets  Price per square metre P22.000-P117,000

The fair value is categorized under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and represents the price that
would be received 1o sel an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants af the measurement date.

Rental income and the directly related expense arising from these investiment propetties foliow:

2020 2019 2018

Rental income {see Note 25) 23945824 £4,450,0061 £5.243,247
Depreciation expense (see Note 23) (1,382,387) (1421877 (2,255,880)

£2,563,437 £3,028,184 82987367

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, no investment properties have been pledged as collateral or
security for any of the Group’s labilities and the Group has no restriction on the realizability of its
investment properties and no contractual obligation to purchase, construct or develop investiment
properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements,

. Other Noncurrent Assets

2020 2019
Software costs RY7,071,541 P120,396,750
Restricted cash 42,348,999 42,445,046
Deferred input VAT 30,772,633 34,785,450
Refundable deposits 21,427,422 19,235,359
Advances to contractors 15,704,899 65,231,688
Investment in artworks 10,186,136 10,186,136
Guarantee deposits 6,412,819 9,486,557
Development costs 5,767,800 5,767,800
Facilities ' 2,359,591 2,732,089
Deferred production costs 1,061,628 1,088,162
Others 2,696,079 3,676,470

P235,808,847 £315,037,507

Software costs relate to software applications and website development costs which provide an edge
on the Group’s online presence and other software issues.

Restricted cash pertains to time deposits under the custody of the courts as a collateral for pending
litigation.

Deferred mput VAT pertains to the VAT on the Group’s acquisitions of capital goods exceeding
£1.00 million in any given month which are to be amortized over the 60 months or the life of the
asset, whichever is shorter.

Guarantee and other deposits consist of the Meraleo refund and refundable rental deposits used for
Parent Company's programs.
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Advances (o contractors pertain to advance payments made by the Parent Company for the
construction of assets to be classified as property and equipment.

Tnvestment in artworks are paintings and other works of art usualty displayed in the Parent
Company’s hallways.

Facilities relate to the paid deposit for facilities used for productions by the Group.

Deferred production costs periain to the costs incurred in relation to the production of music compact
discs and are measured at cost upon recoguition. Deferred production costs are being amortized as
the related compact discs are soid.

The movements in software costs follows:

2020 2019
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year P451,769,256 P386,132,486
Additions during the year 10,616,139 65,484,770
Reclassifications during the year (see Note 12) 6,322,725 152,000
Balance at end of year 468,708,120 451,769,256
Accumutated amortization:
Balance at beginning of year 331,372,506 304,584,117
Amaortization during the vear {(see Note 23) 40,264,073 26,788,389
Balance at end of year 271,636,579 331,372,506

297,071,541 P120,396,750

16. Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities

2020 2019
Payable to government agencies OR1,693,375,218 PY79,415,546
Trade payables 517,862,437 531,035,796
Customers” deposits 41,685,087 53,328,199
Contract liabilities (see Note 10) 35,508,512 127,281,915
Accrued expenses:
Utilities and other expenses 285,296,940 248,948,047
Payroll and talent fees (see Note 26) 232,299,305 202,685,388
Production costs 67,809,420 168,964,614
Commission 44,859,071 38,736,098
Others 58,788,937 56,329,156

$£2,977,884,927  $£2,406,724,759

Payable to government agencies is composed of the Group’s statutory com pensation-related
contributions to government agencies and net VAT and withholding taxes payable to the Bureau of
Internal Revenue (BIR). The difference between the accrual accounting under the accounting
standards and cash-basis accounting as prescribed by the BIR for service-related companies caused
the Group to normally incur deferred output VAT which forms a substantial part of the Group’s
payable to government agencies. These payables are remitted within 30 days after reporting period.

Trade payables to suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on terms ranging from
seven to 60 days.
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Customers’ deposits include guaranty deposits from advertising agencies to secure payment of bills
by advertisers. These deposits are noninterest-bearing and normally refunded once the related
broadeasts are paid by the advertisers. It alse includes deposits from the Group's lessees upon
inception of the lease agresments.

Contract Hiabilities pertain to payments received before broadcast and before delivery of goods and
services. These are recognized as revenue when the Group performs the obligation under the
contract. This account also inctudes contract liabilities of #22.00 million resulting from the sale of
the Group’s interests in X-Play in 2015 (see Note 10).

Accrued expenses and other payables are noninterest-bearing and are generally seftled within the next
financial year.

Others include unpaid subscriptions and retention payables. These are noninterest-bearing and are
normally settled within one year. :

. Short-term Loans

The Parent Company obtained unsecured short-tevm peso and US dolfar-denominated loans from
focal banks in 2020 and 2019. Details and movements of the short-term loans are as follows:

2020 2019
Balance at beginning of year £400,000,000 P500,000,600
Availments 984,340,000 1,517,500,000
Payments (641,895,000) (1,617,500,000)
Revaluation . (22,100,000)
Ralance at end of year £720,345,000 £400,000,000

The outstanding loans as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 consist of fixed rate notes with the
following details:

Interest Rate

Lender  Currency Ambdual (per annumy} Termy 2020 2019
' Availed in 2020;

Citibank  USD $15,000,000 1.80%  payable in 182 days 7203450600 0000 -
Availed in 2020,

uBr Peso £400,000,000 6.00%  payasble in 300 days - 400,000,000

Interest expense on peso derominated loans amounted to P4.33 million, $£46.18 mitlion and
£36.25 million in 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Interest expense on US dollar denominated
loans amounted fo B7.67 million, 210,78 million, and nil in 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively.

. Obligations for Program and Other Rights

Obligations for program and other rights represent liabilities to foreign and local fitm suppliers
for program and other rights purchased by the Group. Outstanding unpaid balance as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to R176.18 million and P133.78 million, respectively.

Obligations for program and other rights arc generally payable in equal monthly or quarterly
instaliments,
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19, Equity

a.

Capital Stock

Details of capital stock ag at December 31, 2020 and 2019

Preferred

Common

Number of

Number of

Shares  Peso Bquivalent Shares  Peso Hquivalent

Authorized - #0.20 par , '

value per preferred

share/P1.00 par value

per common share 7.500,000,000  21,500,000,000 5,000,000.000 £5,000,000.000
Subscribed and issued 7,500,000,000 £1,500,000,000  3,364,692,000 £3.364,692,000
Treasuey shares 492,816 POR 563 3,645,000 £3.645.000
Underlying shares of the
acgquived PDRg -~ P 750,000 750,000

The cumulative preferred shares are of equal rank, preference and priority and are identical in all
respect regardless of series. Preferred shares are participating at the rate of one fifth (1/5) of the
dividends paid to common shares, the rate of which is adjusted proportionately by the Parent
Company’s BOD consequent to any stock split or stock dividend declaration atfecting the
common shares and preferved shares. Preferred shares are convertible at the option of the
shareholders at the ratio of five preferred shares to one common share, based on par value.

Preferred shares enjoy priority over common shares in the distribution of assets of the Parent
Company in the event of dissolution and figquidation, at such rates, terms and conditions as the
BOD may determine. Each preferred share is entitled to one vote and shall have the same voting
rights as the common shares.

The Parent Company’s BOD may specify ather terms and conditions, qualifications, restrictions
and privileges of the preferred shares or series/classes thereof, insofar ag such terms, conditions,
qualifications, restrictions and privileges are not inconsistent with the articles of incorporation
and any applicable law or regulation.

The following summarizes the information on the Parent Company’s registration of securities
with the SEC which was approved on June 20, 2007, as required by Revised Securities
Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68:

Authorized and Jssue/Offer

Securities issued shares Price

Initial public offering 91,346,060 P8.50

Underlying common shares of PDRs 945,432,000 8.50

Over-allotment common shares 13,701,000 8.50
Common shares covering employee stock option

plan 57,000,000 8.50

In prior years, the Parent Company has acquired 750,000 PDRs issued by GMA Holdings, Inc. at
acquisition cost of P5.79 milfion. In as much as each PDR share grants the holder, upon payment
of the exercise price and subject to certain other conditions, the delivery of one (1) Parent
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Company share or the sale and delivery of the proceeds of such sale of Parent Company share,
such PDRs held by the Parent Company is being treated stimilar to a treasury shares.

b. Retained Barnings
The retained earnings of the Parent Company is restricted for the payment of dividends to the
extent of P34.27 mitlion ag at December 31, 2020 and 2019, representing the cost of shares held

in treasury and underlying shares of the acquired PDRs amounting to P28.48 million and
£3.79 million, regpectively.

The Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration of the following cash dividends:

Cash Dividend Total Cash
Year Declaration Date Record Date Per Share Dividend Declared
2026  June 8, 2020 June 24, 2020 £0.30 £21,458,059,531
2019 March 29, 2019 Aprit 22,2019 PO .45 22 187,089,297
2018 April 5,2018 April 23,2018 20,50 £2 430,099,220

The Parent Company’s outstanding dividends payable amounted to £19.89 million and
P1R.73 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, vespectively,

On March 26, 2021, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration and distribution of
cash dividends amounting to £1.35 per share totaling £6,561.27 million to all stockholders of
record as at April 22, 2021 and will be paid on May 18,2021,

The balance of retained earnings includes Parent Company’s accumulated equity in net earnings
of subsidiaries and associates which are not currently available for dividend declaration until
declared by the respective subsidiaries and associates amounting to #103.05 million and
£140.06 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

20, Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to be velated if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control. Related
parties may be individual or corporate entities.

The Parent Company has an approval requirement such that material related party transactions
(RPTs) shall be reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee (the Committee) and
submitted to the BOD for approval. Material RPTs are those transactions that meet the thieshold
value amounting to ten percent (10%) or higher of the Company’s total consolidated assets based on
its latest audited financial statements either individually, or in aggregate over a twelve (12)-month
period with the same related party.

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash throughout the
financial year. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables
or payables. For years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group has not recorded any
impairment of receivables on amounts owed by the related parties. The assessment is undertaken
each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates.
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In the ordinary course of business, the Group transacts with associate, affiliates, joint venture and
other refated parties on advances, reimbursement of oxpenses, and future stock subscriptions.

The transactions and balances of accounts as at and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
with related parties are as follows:

Amount/
Account Name and Volume of
Catepory Relaed Party Year  Transactions Receivables  Terms Conditions
Advanees (see Note 1) Associate: ’
Moni-Atre w24 $£600,186 £97,722,006  Noninterest Unsecured:
2019 8,104,799 97421 8383 bearing nol impaired
Join¢ ventures:
Gamespan 2020 P 1,959,670 Noninterest- Unsecured:
A1 - 1,959 670 bearing not fimpaired
PLP 2420 248,640 860,085  Noninierest Unsecured,
2019 26,543 611415 bear ol inpaired
INQ? 2020 - 11,544,000  Noninterest- Unsecuragd:
2019 11,544 000 bearing fully impaiced
Total 2020 P£848,826 112,085,741
2009 8,131,342 [11,236.9(5
Nontrade Reecivables
Reimbursabie charges Common
{sce Note 7} stockholders:
GMA Kapuso 2020 ¥1,067,042 £3,361,550  On demand, Unsecured;
fFoundation Ine. 2019 2 000,000 2,194 50 nopinterests net inpaired
bearing
Legal, consulting and Belo, Gozon, Elma - 2020 13,711,018 = Ondemand, Unsecured:,
retainers fees faw 019 14,017,565 : noninteresi- nol impaired
bearing
Totnl 2020 214,878,087 23,361,550
019 16,017,568 2,194 508

The advances made by the Parent Company to Mont-Aire and PEP are intended for future capital
subscription. On the other hand, the advances to INQ7 were fully impaired as a result of the
application of the Group’s share in the losses of INQ7 recognized under the equity method in excess
of the Group’s carrying value of investment.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The compensation of key management personnel of the Group, by benefit type, are as follows:

2020 2019 2018

Salaries and other long-term
benefits (see Notes 23 and 24) £913,703,843 R711,908,901 2568,481,703
Pension benefits
(see Notes 23 and 24} 165,255,983 95,819,977 89,819,201
?1,678,959,826 P807,728,878 P658,300,904

Pension bepefits under OC! amounted to P454.32 million, P171.62 miltion and P163.45 million as of
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Equity Investments of the Retirement Fund

The Group’s retirement fund includes equity investments in GMA Network, inc. and GMA PDRs
amounting to £41.78 million and 233139 million in 2020, respectively, and £37.12 million and
£295.19 million in 2019, respectively (see Note 26).
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21, Revenues

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenues from contract with customers for the year

ended December 31

2020 2019 2018
Ruevente source
Sate ol service
Advertising revenue R17,727,494901 R15,173,925.007 £13,834,535,108
Subscription vevenue (sce Note 27) 1,685,081 1,056,700,874 11660,342.535
Revenue (rom distribution and content provisioning 63,653.634 §9.330.710 109,457 682
Production yevenue 49,947,752 173475621 131,857,044
Sale of goods 583,794,170 : -
‘Catal revenue from contracts with customers 219.335,805,538 £16,493.452,212 $£15,236,192 3069

Geographical markets
Locai

P18,311,968,706 #15,288,293,657 £13,934,435,792
International 1,023,926,832 1,205,158,555 1,.301,756,577
Fatal revenue from contracts with cusfomers £19,335,895,538 £16,493,452,212 £15,236,192,369

Timing of revenue recognition
Guoods/services translerred at a point in time P18,424,800457 £15,436,751,338 $£14,075,840.834
Services (ransforred over time 911,005,081 £,056,700,874 1,160.342.535
‘Fotal revenue from contracts with customers $19,335,805,538 R16,493,452,212 £135,230,192 369

22. Production Costs \
2020 2019 2018
Talent fees and production personnel costs

(see Note 24) P1,705,667.865 P2.947.995,874 $2,992,043,969

Program and other rights usage
(see Note 8) 703,415,807 988,703,737 871,451,221
Facifities and amortization of production services 460,116,613 818,967,334 826,000,103
Reptal {see Note 27) 218,239,334 812,006,080 895,795,347
Depreciation (see Notes 12 and 23} 164,639,078 £68,170,547 202,361,442
‘Tapes, sets and production supplies 142,401,{05 533,463,632 539,520,779
‘Iransportation and communication 65,658,557 165,846,561 156,530,203
£3.452,138,389 £6,435,153,765  6,483,703,064

23. General and Administrative Expenses

2020 2019 2018
Personned costs (see Note 24) . £4,525,101,340 84,127,118,304 £3,284,815,534
Depreciation (see Notes 12, 14 and 27) 386,936,123 409,533,900 384,087,457
Provision for ECL (see Note 7) 347,195,883 18,297,347 109,631,061
Professional fees 315,734,976 202,048,149 184,332,966
Communication, light and water 235,051,327 317,381,955 340,696,239
Tases and licenses (82,104,942 174,361,923 192,819,834
Repairs and maintenance 144,785,132 173,414,414 125,012,025
Research and surveys 9,769,435 66,103,888 81,418,243
Adverdsing 84,866,697 257,877,219 223,861,267
Software maintenance 81,430,010 78,875,726 60,313,430

(Forward)
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2026 2019 2018
Facilities related expenses £69,849,171 £64,498 251 £65.317.563
Security sevices 66,865,570 09,686,464 68,412,361
Murketing expense 55,136,499 87.255,502 99,870,405
Transportation and travel 54,407,006 57432.446 58,150,821
Amortization of software costs (see Note 15) 40,264,073 26,788,380 23,473,007
fnsurarce 29,628,379 31,241.255 29254 674
Janitorial services 22,863,052 25,805,533 22,612,232
Magerials and supplies 2,525,485 17,505,157 19.815,582
Rental (see Nowe 27) 9,603,762 1,967,504 31.547,081
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 8,452,628 13,195,672 13,454,014
Dues and subscriptions 8,254,093 8,382,407 7534012
Freight and handling 6,092,430 6,415,072 7,691,224
Others 85,499,998 80,270,317 80,320,088
£6,847,818,011 P6325450,794 £5,514,342.920

Others include expenses incurred for messengerial services, other manpower, donations and other

miscellaneous expenses.

Depreciation
2020 2019 2018
Property and equipment (see Note [2) :
Production costs (see Note 22) £164,639,078  PI6R170,547  P02,361 442
General and administrative expenses 351,775,781 377,448,970 381,831,577
516,414,859 543,619,517 584,193,019
Right-of-use assets (see Note 27)
General and administrative expenses 27,771,955 30,663,053 ~-
[nvestment properties (sce Note 14)
General and administrative expenses 1,382,387 1,421,877 2,255,880
P545,575201 P577.704,447  P586,448,899
24. Personnel Costs
2020 2019 2018
Salaries and wages £2.578,012,608 P2,305,819,824 P1,993,485,463
‘Talent fees 1,617,514239  2.862,447,231  2,922,326,940
Employee benefits und allowances 1,245,873,978  1,346,669,079 932,500,288
Pensgion expense (see Note 26) 646,198,143 402,209,767 312,489,341
Sick and vacation leaves expense 1&3,170,237 157,968,277 116,057,271
£6,230,769,205 £7,075,114,178  £6,276,859,303

The above amounts were distributed as follows:

2020 2019 2018

Production costs (see Note 22) £1,705,667.865 P2.947,995,874 $2,992,043,969
General and administrative expenses (see Nate 23) 4,525,101,340  4,127,118,304 3,284 815334
£6,230,769,205 P7.075,114,178  £6,276,859,303
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25. Others - Net

Commission from Artist Center

Net gain on sale of propeity and equipment and
investment properties (see Notes 12 and 14)

VAT difference on sales to governiment per Revenue

Repulations 16-20035
Rental income (see Notes 12, 14 and 27)
Merchandising license fees and others
Bank charges
Others

2020 2019 2018
F4E.128337  PA1,633,736  $37.094,49
17,250932 21368209 19,829,189
10,218,187 6,701,064 -
6,894,304 8,561,148 8,269,526
2,549,637 8,651,427 12,552,196
(L411850)  (2281.842)  (1.940.697)
4,545,220 3,132,824 3.308,782

£85,174,767 P87.766,560 £79.113,895

Merchandising ticense fees and others include income from mall shows, sale of DVDs and integrated
receiver decoders and dividend income (see Note 10).

26.

Pension and Other Employee Benefits

As at December 31, pension and other employee benefits consist of:

2620 2019

Pension liability
Vacation and sick leave accrual

P4,915,125,689 £2,733,593,128
355,988,220 341,479,883

Less current portion of vacation and sick leave

acerual®

5,271,113,909  3,075,073,041

) 6,285,766 5,078,843

Pension and other long-term employee benefits

£5764,828,143  £3,069,994,168

*rtuded fr “Averued expenses” wder Trade pupables und other current liubilities (see Note 16).

Pension Benefits

The Group operates non-confributory defined benefit retirement plans.

Under the existing regulatory framework, R.A. 7641 requires a provision for retirement pay to
qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided
however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaming and other
agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require minimum

funding of the plan,

Pension benefits recognized in the statements of comprehensive income are as follows (see Note 24):

2020 2019 2018
Current service cost P438.234, 125  £234,746,730  $216,272,094
Past service cost - - 8,713,551
Net interest cost 207,963,418 167,463,037 87,503,696

£646,198,143  £402,209,767  $312,489,341
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Net pension liability recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position is as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Present value of defined benefit obligation $6,359.224,091  R3,984.474.739% £3,180.9537.326
Fair value of plan assels 1444098402  1,250.881.611 997,963,101
Pension liability T R4.915,125,689 $2.733,593,128 £2,182.994,135

The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2026 20119 2018
Balance at beginning of year £3.984,474,739  #3,180957.326 P2,531.456.676
Current service cost ) 438,234,725 234,746,730 216,272,094
fnterest cost 306,876,971 242,805,975 136,667,808
Past service cost - - 8,713,551
Benelits paids
From plan assets 189,229,662y  (110,958,935)  (148.327.656)
From Group’s own funds (9.686,893) (7,955,884} (48,311,185
Remeasurement losses {gains):
Changes in financial agsumptions {,53G,340,215 778,107,846 {448,513,200)
Changes in demographic assumptions (10,0°76,998) 19,038,199
Experience adjustment 308,290,994 {333,228.299) 913,961,039
Balance at end of year £6,359.224,091  £3,984,474,739  83,180.957.326
The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2020 2019 2018
Batance & beginning of year £1,250,881,611  £997.963,191 PRG1,299 486
Contribution during the year 259,000,000 266448 811 279,063,770
Interest income 98,913,353 75,342 938 49,164,112
Benefils paid (189,229,662)  (110,958,955)  (148,327.656)
Remeasurement gain (loss) - return on plan assets 24,532,900 22,085,026 (43,176,521)
I3alance at end of year £1,444,008,402 B1,250.881,011  £997 963,191

Remeasurement loss on retirement plans amounting to #1,261.62 million, #300.70 million and
£367.20 million reported under the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in 2020, 2019
and 2018 is presented net of deferred tax.

At each reporting period, the Group determines its contribution based on the performance of its
retirement fund.

The Group expects to contribute £290.00 miltion to the fund in 2021.

The funds are managed and supervised by trustee banks for the benefits of the m embers. However,
the general administration of the funds is vested in a Retirement Com nittee.
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The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the plan assets:

2020 2019

Carrying Carrying

Value/Fair Value Value/Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents 241,228,384 £197,432,706
Equity instruments (see Note 20): '

GMA PDRs 331,387,630 295,185,620

GMA Network, Inc. 41,784,000 37,118,120

Debt instruments -

Government securities 668,129,819 614,159,861

Unit fnvestment Trust Funds (UITFs) 361,468,966 105,319,599

Others 99,603 1,665,705

£1,444,098,402  P1,250,881,611

The plan assefs consist of the following:

= Cash and cash equivalents consist of regular savings and time deposits.

= Investments in equity instruments consist of listed shares of GMA Network, Inc. and GMA PDRs
(see Note 20). Changes in the fair market value of these investments resulted to P23.95 million
gain in 2020, #16.91 million loss in 2019 and P44.23 million loss in 2018.

s Ipvestments in debt instruments bear interest ranging from 5.40% to 6.30% and have maturities
from January 2021 to July 2031. Equity and debt instruments held have quoted prices in active
market.

s Investment in UITFs are measured at their net asset value per onit amounting to #255.39 and
P227.39 as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

B

Others consist of loans and receivables which are collectible within the next twelve months.

The person who exercises voting rights over shares is within the powers of the Trustee, who do not
have any relationship with the directors or officers of the Group.

The plan assets are primarily exposed to financial risks such as tiquidity risk and price risk.

Liquidity risk pertains to the plan’s ability to meet its obligation to the employees upon retirement,
To effectively manage liquidity rigk, the Board of Trustees invests at least the equivalent amount of
actuarially computed expected compulsory retirement benefit payments for the year to liquid/semi-
liquid assets such as treasury notes, treasury bills, and savings and time deposits with commercial
banks. '

The Group performs an Asset-Liability Matching Study (ALM) annually. The principal technigue of
the Group’s ALM in order to minimize the portfolio liquidation risk is to ensure that the expected
return on assets will be sufficient to support the desired level of funding arising from the defined
benefit plans,

Price risk pertains mainly to fluctuations in market prices of equity securities listed in the Philippine
Stock Exchange. In order to effectively manage price risk, the Board of Trustees continuously
assesses these risks by closely monitoring the market value of the securities and implementing
prudent investment strategies.

However, in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement plan and the retirement fund is not

sufficient to pay the benefit, the unfinded portion of the claim shall immediately be due and payable
to the retirement fund from the Group.
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The principal assumptions used in determining pension tability for the Group’s plans are shown

below:

2020

2019

2018

Discount rale
FExpected rate of salary increase
Turn-over rates:

19-24 vears old

25-29 years old

30-34 years old

35-39 yeurs old

4044 vears old

=43 years old

3.10-7.70%
4,00-5.00%

7.26-9.48%
5.56-7.88%
3.70-6.14%
2.69-4.22%
2.00-3.8{%
6.00-3.05%

4,13-7.70%
[.44-3.00%

4.006-36.00%
6.00-70.00%
4.40-24.00%
2.00-12.00%
2.00-10.00%

1,30-2.00%

7.09-7.70%
2.5-5.00%

7.26-32.00%
5.56-25.50%
3.25-20.00%
0.00-8.00%
0.00-6.50%
0.00-8.25%

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined by remeasuring the defined benefit obligation at
the reporting period after first adjusting one of the current assumption that were reasonably possible
at the valuation date while all other assumptions remained unchanged. It should be noted that the
changes assumed to be reasonably possible at the valuation date are open to subjectivity, and do not
consider more complex scenarios in which changes other than those assumed may be deemed to be

more reasonable.

Inerease

{Decrease) in

Increase (Decrease) in Befined Benefit Obligation

Basis Points

2019 2018

Discount rale 50 (£320,849.87%) (?l*)({‘)SS,ﬂ-R()) (B#151,033,648)
(50) 348,403,037 202,730,781 163,215,384
Fulure salary increases 50 346,662,010 210,769,378 166,759,223
’ (503 (321.818,707) (194,862.800) (155,480,126)

Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as at December 31, 2020:

Less than one year

More than | year to 3 years
More than 3 years to 7 years
More than 7 years to |5 years
More than 15 years to 20 years
More than 20 years

Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

521,350,603
1,899,583,535
2,355,852,639
3,775,201,107
4,862,907,624
8,284,687,763

Other long-term employee benefits consist of accumulated and unexpired employee sick and vacation
leave entitlements. Noncurrent portion of other employee benefits amounted to P349,70 million and
£336.40 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, while current portion of other
employee benefits recorded in “Accrued payroll and talent fees” included under *“Trade and other
current liabilities” account amounted to £6.29 million dnd £5.08 million as at December 31, 2020 and

2019, respectively (see Note 16).
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27. Agreements

Lease Agreements

Starting January 1. 2019 - Upon adoption of PFRS 16

Group as a Lessee

The Group entered into various lease agreements for land, building, studio and office spaces that it
presently occupies and uses for periods ranging from two to 12 years. The lease agreements can be
renewed subject to mutual agreement. Most of the lease agreements can be terminated at the option
of the Group while the termination option in the lease agreements of NMI, a subsidiary is subject to
mutual agreement. Previously, these leases were classified as operating leases under PAS 17, Leases.

The Group also has certain leases with Jease terms of 12 months or less. The Group applies the
“short-term lease” recognition exemptions for these leases.

The roliforward analysis of right-of-use assets follows:

2020
Right-of-use:
Right-of-use: Buildings, studio Right-of-use:
Land and office spaces Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year £94,553,476 £65.911,763 £160,465,239
Pre-termination - {18,203.671) (18,203,671)
Balance at the end of year 94,553,476 47,708,092 142,261,568
Accumuaiated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 16,797,383 13,865,670 30,663,053
Depreciation (see Note 23) 12,001,535 15,776,420 27,771,955
Pre-tevmination - (5,447,716 {5,447, 716)
Balance at the end of year 28,798,918 24,194,374 52,993,292
Net Book Value R65,754,558 £23,513,718 £89,268,276
2019
Right-of-use:
Right-of-use:  Buitdings, studio and Right-of-use:
Land office spaces ‘Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year 270,667,431 £2§,320,921 POR.O8R 352
Additiohs 23,886,045 37,590,842 61,476,887
Balance at the end of year 94,553,476 65,911,763 160,465,239
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year - .
Depreciation (see Note 233 16,797,383 13,805,670 30,663,083
Balance at end of vear 16,797,383 13,865,670 30,663,053
Net Book Value £77,756,093 252,046,093 £129,802,186
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The rollforward analysis of lease Habilities follows:

2020 2019

Balance at beginning of year P105,788,115 $66,335,587
Additions - 53,959.212
Accretion of interest 5.887.214 6987979
Payments (21,762,363} (21,694.663)
Pre-termination (12,986,894)
Balance at end of year £76,856,072 R105,788,115
2026 2019

Current portion P10,485,295 P18,268,746
Noncurrent portion 66,370,777 87.519,369
Balance at end of year £76,856,072 P£105,788,115

The rollforward anatysis of dismantling provision follows:

2020 2019

Balance at beginning of year 42,392,195 P32,452,765
Additions - 7,517,685
Accretion of interest X 2,581,218 2421745
Balance at end of year 844,973,410 42,392 195

The following are the amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

2020 2019
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
(sec Note 23) P27,777,955 P30,663,053
Interest expense on lease liabilities 5,817,214 6,987,979
Interest expense on dismantling provision 2,581,215 2,421,745
“Expense retating to-short-term-leases-(included-in —
“Production costs”) (see Note 22) 210,239,334

Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in “General and Administrative
expenses”™) (see Note 23) 9,603,762

Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease payments:

11,967,504

2020 2019
I year P15,350,271 P17,387,545
maore than | year to 2 years 14,079,368 13,989,811
more than 2 years to 3 years 12,759,983 13,760,554
more than 3 years to 4 years 10,992,270 50,831,950
More than § years . 45,501,281 77,864,795

Also, in June 2012, the Parent Company agreed to extend its non-cancellable Co-production/
Blocktime Rental Agreement with ZOE Broadcasting Network, Inc. (ZBN) for another

seven (7) years from June 2012 to May 2019. On the first year of the contract renewal, the Parent
Company shall pay ZBN an amount equivalent to total payments from June 2011 to May 2012,
subject to yearly escalation of 10.00%. The agreement has ended in May 2019, The rental expense
recognized on the agreement with ZBN amounted to #77.03 million in 2019.
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Total rental expense on short-term leases amounted to $219.84 million and £746.94 million in 2020
and 2019, respectively (see Notes 22 and 23),

Group as Lessor. ‘The Group leases out certain properties for a period of one year, renewable
annually. The leased-out properties include investment properties, and broadcasting equipment.
Total rental income amounted to £6.89 miilion and £8.56 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively (see
Naote 23).

Prior to January 1, 2019 - Prior to adoption of PFRS 16

Operating Lease Commitments - Group as Lessee. The Group entered into various lease agreements
o~ . . v . . - 1 - ~ . N
for the land, building, studio spaces and airtime that it presently occupies and uses for periods ranging
from three to twenty five years. The leases are cancellable at the Group’s option.

The Group’s other [ease arrangements consist of short-term leases, renewed on a need basis.
Total rental expense on amounted to P927.34 miilion 2018 (see Notes 22 and 23),
Operating Lease - Group as Lessor. The Group also leases out certain properties for a period of one

year, renewable annually. The Jeased out properties include investment properties and broadcast
equipment. Total rental income amounted to £8.27 million in 2018 {see Note 25).

The Parent Company entered into varicus subsctiption agreements with international cable providers
for the ajring of its programs and shows abroad. The agreements generally have terms of three to five
years and are based on certain agreed service package rates.

Total subscription revenue amounted to 291 1.00 million, 1,056.70 million and P1,160.34 million in
2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively (see Note 21).

Purchase Agreement for Set-top Boxes

. In 2020, the Parent Company enteved into several contracts with Ablee Electronic Company Limited

for the supply of set-top boxes with complete accessories, Total purchases in 2020 amounted to-

£896.80 million. As at December 31, 2020, total advances for set-top boxes to be delivered in 2021
amounted to 566.86 million (see Note 9).

i

. Income Taxes

Current Income Tax
The current income tax consists of the following:

2020 2019 2018
RCIT ' §£2,728,600,117 P1,200,771,887 21,056,837.806
MCTT 50,423 6,256 16,100

£2,728,650,540  £1,200,778,143  £1,056,853,906
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The reconciliation between the statutory income tax rates and effective income tax rates are shown
below:

2020 2019 2018
Statutory income tax 30.60% 30.00% 30.00%
Additions (deductions) in income tax
resulting frov:
Interest income already subjected to final tax {0.63) {0.18) A
Mondeductible interest expense 0.10 0.05 0.07
Nondeductible tax deficiency payment - .06 0.37
Others - net 0.01 -
Effective income tax 30.08% 29.93% 30.25%

The components of the Group’s net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2024 2019

Deferred tax assets:
Pension lability $1,473,503,571 £819,935.351
Allowance for ECL, 227,861,136 164,181,742
Other long-term employee benefits 104,910,736 100,860,733
Accrued expenses 30,265,904 33,314,129
Lease liabilities 22,706,164 31,736 435
intercompany sale of intangible assets ’ 18,600,060 22,500,000
Dismantling provision 13,492,023 12,717,658
Contract liabilities 10,772,554 38,172,487
Unrealized foreipn exchange loss 8,213,125 9,085,334
Allowance for probable losses in advances 8,187,320 8,161,268
Unamortized past service cost 7,862,147 3,126,052
Unrealized loss on financial assets at FYQCI 6,218,787 2,59921 4
CNOLCO. ... 298,058 -
Exbocs MOTT over ROIT o e e

1,932,254,144 1,246,431,586

Deferred tax liabilities:
Revaijuation increment on land (733,073,652) (733,073,652)
Right-of-use assets (26,460,540) (38,940,656)
(759,534,192  (772,014,308)
£1,172,719,952 P474.447278

The components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) pertaining to accounts presented under equity in
the consolidated statements of financial position are as follows:

2020 2019
Revaluation increment on land (B733,073,652) (P733,073,652)
Pension liability - remeasurement loss
on retirement plan , 677,677,431 128,870,460
Revaluation of financial assets at FVOCH 7,862,147 2,599211

{47,534,674)  (P601,603,981)
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The camponents of the subsidiaries’ deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of
NOLCO and MCET, for which no deferred tax assets have been recognized in the Group’s

consolidated statements of financial position, are as follows:

2020 2019

NOLCO 210,038,762 B6.131,646
Allowance for RCL 7,181,194 2,367,129
Allowance for inventory stock 6,978,287 6,978,286
Pension Hability 3,447,119 475201
Unamortized past service cost 877,523 92,404
Excess MCIT over RCIT 64,334 67,295
Other long-term employce benefits - 198,597
Others 102,383 37,362
' £28,389,602 P16,348,010

The unrecognized deferred tax assets from the above deductibie temporary differences and
carryforward benefits of NOLCO and MCIT amounted to P8,56 million and $£4.95 million as at

December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The deferred tax assets were not recognized as management believes that future taxable income
against which the deferred tax assets can be used for these entities may not be available.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s MCIT is as follows!

Years Paid/Incurred

MCIT

Carryforward Benefit Up To
2018 2021 £7,501
2019 2022 28,875
2020 2023 50,577
Pg6,953

& "»*On-September»&(),.:202(),»,‘the‘BlR.issued Revenue Regulations No. 25-2020 implementing Section

4(b) of “Bayanihan to Recover As One Act” which states that the NOLCO incurred for taxable years 7

2020 and 2021 can be carried over and claimed as a deduction from gross income for the nexi five (5)
consecutive taxable years immediately following the year of such loss.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group has incurred NOLCO before taxable year 2020 which can be
claimed as deduction from the regular taxable income for the next three (3) consecutive taxable years,

as follows:

Applications Applications
Year Availment in previous in the current  Unapplied
incurred period Amount year/s  Expirations year NOLCO
2017 2018 to 2020 £776,438 B~ P776,438 P P
2018 - 2019 to 2021 3,626,616 9,757 - 490,82 3,126,035
2019 2020 to 2022 231377 - - - 2.731377
£7,134,431 P9 757  P776,/438  P490,824 £5,857412
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Asat December 31, 2020, the Company has incurred NOLCO in taxable year 2020 which can be
claimed as deduction from the regular taxable income for the next five (5} consecutive taxable years
pursuant to the Bayanihan to Recover as One Act, as fgllows:

Applications Applications
Year Availment in previous by the current Unapplied
incurred period Amount year/s  Expirations year NOLCO
2620 2021 10 2025 PS.174 877 - P~ P P5.174,877

29. EPS Computation

The computation of basic and diluted EPS follows:

2020 2019 2018
Net income attributable to equity holders of
the Parent Company (a) P3,984,584,939 22 618,460,706 £2,.304,793 288
Less attithutable to preforred shareholders 1,846,897,337 808,080,787 711,280,168
Net incenic attrbutabie 0 common cqliiiy o ' )
holders of the Parent Company (b) B4, 137,687,602 £1.810,379919 #1,393 513,119
Common shiwres wsacd o1 the beginning ol
yuar (Note 19) 3,364,692,000 3,364,692.000 3.364,692,000
Treasury shares (Note 19) {3,645000) {3.643.000) (3.645,000)
Undedying shares on acquired PDRs
{Note 19) (750,060} (750.000) (750.000)
Wetghted average number of common shares
for hasic VIS (¢) 3,360,297,000 3,360,297.000 3,360,297.000
Weiphiod averase pumber of common shares 3,360,297,600, 3,360,297 000 3,360,292.000
Effect of dilution - ussumed conversion of
preferred shares 1,500,000,600 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000
Reacqutired preferred shares {98,563) (98.563) (98.563)
Weiphted average number of common shares '
adiusted for the etfect of difution () 4,860,198 437 4 860,108 437 4,860,108 437
coeeee Basio BIPS (bie) £1.231 S ROS3Y 0,474
PDiluted EES (a/d) £1.231 $40.530 #0.474

30. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments includes raising financing for the Group’s operations and managing
identified financial risks. The Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other
receivables, refundable deposits, trade payables and other current liabilities (excluding payable to
government agencies, customers’ deposits, contract liabitities, and advances from customers), short-
term loans, obligations for program and other rights, dividends payable, other long-term employee
benefits and lease liabilities, which arise directly from its operations, and financial assets at FVOCL.
The main risks arising from the use of financial instruments are liquidity risk, foreign currency
exchange risk and credit risk. The Group is not exposed to interest rate risk as most of its financial
assets and financial Jiabilities have fixed rates.

The BOD reviews and approves the Group’s objectives and policies.

¥
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Liquidity Risk. The Group is exposed to the possibility that adverse changes in the business
environment and/or its operations would result in substantially higher working capitaf requirements
and subsequently pose difficulty in financing the additional working capital,

The Group manages liquidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations to meet its
short-term liquidity needs. The Group likewise regularly evaluates other financing instruments and

arrangements to broaden the Group’s range of financing sources.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments as at December 31

2020

L.ess thaw

More than

TBILGTI G068

On Demand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months 1 year Yotal
Financial assels at amortized cost; ’ ’
Cash and cash equivalents R2,892,345,28¢ P322,271,983 - B £3,214,817,264
Trade veccivables:
Television and radio . !
airtime 2,455.964,677 7.478,648,764 - - 9,934,604,841
Subscriptions 162,862,287 . 84,098,769 - - 246,901,856
Others 82,254,529 46,624,618 -~ - 128,876,147
Nontrade receivables:
Advances to officers and
employees 1,636,162 8,230,704 - - 6,866,866
Others 84,639,593 64,649,192 = - 149,288,785
Refundable deposite® - - - 21,427,422 21427422
Financial agsets ar VOO - - - 192,132,088 192,132,088
) 5,679.838.929 8,001,516,630 - 213,559,580 13,894,914,469
Loans and borrowings: ) ) )
Trade payables and other
current Jiabilitiey* 341,916,369 648,035,317 16,904,424 - 1,200916,116
Short-term Joang™ = 728,741,190 - ~ 726,741,196
Obligations for program and
other rights - 73,369,390 102,812,738 - 176,182,128
fease Habilitieg»® - 4,208,629 12,032,002 §3,333,102 99,573,733
Dividends pavable 19,894,437 - - - (9,894,437
’ 561,810,806 f446,354,526 131,809 83,333,102 2,223.347,598
Liguidity Portion (Gap) RS, 118,028,123 P6,555,161,504 (PI3T, 130,226,408
*Includiad wnder “Gther poncurrent ussers ™ aecount i the consolidated stafentent of financial pusition (see Neie 13),
FEfxcluding, payable to government agencies, coniraa fiahifities and cusiomer deposits amounting te 1,693.38 million,
PIS.O1 mithon amd P41.69 miflion, respectively fsee Note 145,
R frosy comtraciuad payinents.
2019
Less than More than
On Demand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months I year Total
Financial assets st amortized cost; A
Cash and cash eguivalents 21,852,507 801 #4072 463,855 P P~ R2254 971656
Trade receivables:
Televiston aid radio
airtime 1,084,175736 3,664,972, 758 - - 4,749, 148,4%4
Subseriptions 233,691,355 96,532,218 330,223,573
Othery 110,679,514 58,987,974 - 169,667,488
Nontrade receivables:
Advances 1o officers
and employges - S.913890 5913850
Gthers 2,603,237 191,271 - 2,194,508
Refundable deposits® - - 19.235,359 19,235,359
Finavgial assets at FVQCT - - 243,433,060 243,433,060
3,283 057,643 4,223,148,076 5,913,890 202,668,419 7,774,788 (028

(Forvard)
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2019
Less than ) Mot than

On Demand 3 Months 3 to {2 Months i vear 'Toral

Loany and borrowings: ) ) )

Trade payables and other
current {abilitics®™ B560,644,264 2664935106 #21,119,720 B 1 246 99,099
Shott-term feang®*** . 404,333,333 -~ 404,333,333
wns fr program and

other rights - 133784 154 - - 131784154
Leuse Hubilities® ¥ FI68251 22.002 61t 112,631,542 £35,902 404
§79,37%.272 1204320 844 43,122,340 112,631,542 L 939452 998
Liguedity Portion {Gap) PLTO3679371  RIOIKR2T232 (237208 450) B150.036,877  #3.835333.030

Sieladed wnder “Other saicurvent ussets uccount i e consalidaied et af fintniciid pasition fsee Noie 13).

#EEvohuding payable fa government agencies, contract liuhitities vnd customer depoxity amvating (o PY79.4.7 miltion,
12728 mitlion and 173333 mittion, ruspectively (see Noje 16).

BIRGroxy costractl puysents.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange risk results from certain
business transactions denominated in foreign currencies. 1t is the Group’s policy to ensure that
capabilities exist for active but conservative management of its foreign currency exchange risk.

The Group’s foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are as follows:

220 2019
Assets

Cagh and cash cquivalemts $14,428,000 #692,832,539 $7.179.428 P363,530,337
C$1,515,837 56,692,289 €$596,756 23,103,528
“Trade receivables 54,295,851 206,286,757 $1.823,154 92,315,394
81,392,382 52,075,098 C$7,233,455 280,044,657
S$113,726 4,107,775 S$16.936 34,931
A836,854 1,341,474 AB202.854 7,152,526
DYIS2, 170 R 682,387 DH132.843 1,835,890
Y -~ ¥10,738,238 4,976,730
£1,014,018,319 P773,587.993
Shori-term loans $15,000,600 2720343000 $- P
Trade payables $2,891,699 138,859,374 1,083,401 54,838,010
€11,670 684,924 €- -
Obligations for program and other rights $2,892,613 138,903,262 2,171,343 109,945 953
£998,792,300 ’ £164,£03,963
BI5,225,759 POGT 779,044

In translating the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities into Philippine peso
amounts, the exchange rate used were 48,02 to US$1.00 and £50.74 to USS$1.00, the Philippine peso
to U.S. dollar exchange rate, as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The exchange rate for
Philippine peso to Canadian dollar was B37.40 to CAD$S1.00 as at December 31, 2020. The peso
equivalents for the Singaporean Dollar, Japanese Yen, Australian Dollar, Birham and Euro are
#36.12, PO.46, B36.40, P13.08, and P58.69 respectively as at December 31, 2020.
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The tollowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the exchange
tates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax from reporting
period up to next reporting period {due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and Habilities).
There is no impact on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting profit or loss.

ffect on fncan e before Income Tax

Appreciation?

{Brepreciution)
af Pexy LSH CAD SGH AUD AED liiad EUR Fouwt
2420 058 BIA36334  (BHL454,140) {B56,863) (P18,427) (B26.G85) Lt #5038 {513.815)
(B.56) (1,036,534 1,484,109 56,863 t8,427 26,085 ~ (5,835) 513,415
2019 Q80 (PLRCIIOS) (395,106 {P8,408) (PLOL 426} (#66,422)  (P5369.119) P (P12324.530)
L {050 2863995 3915000 8,408 HO1.42¢ 066,422 5369119 - 1232453

Credit Risk. Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defauiting, is controlled by the application of
credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures, It is the Group’s policy to enter into transactions
with a diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of credit risk.

The Group ensures that sales of products and services are made to customers with appropriate credit
history. The Group has an internal mechanism to monitor the granting of credit and management of
credit exposures. The Group has made provisions, where necessary, for potential losses on credits
extended. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty with a
maximum cxposure equal to the carrying amount of the instruments. The Group does not require any
collateral for its financial assets, thus, maximum exposure to credit visk is equal to the canying value
of the financial mstruments.

The table betow shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated
financial position as at December 31;

2020 2019
Financial assets at amortized cost:
Cash and cash equivalentg® #2,557,264,071 1,988,824 410
Trade receivables:
Television and radio afrtime 9,934,604,841 4,749,148,494
Subscriptions 246,901,056 330,223,573
Others 128,876,147 169,667,488
Norntrade receivables:
Advances to officers and employees 6,866,866 5,913.890
Others 149,288,785 2,194,508
Refundable depogitg** 21,427,422 19,235,359
13,045,229,188 7.,265,207,722
Financial assets at FVOCI 192,132,088 243.433.060

P13,237,361,276 £7,508,640,782
*lxchnding cash o band wmounting o P353

.24 muillion and 244,75 million us at December 31, 2020 and 2079, respectively,
i tnclided wnder " Other nomcurrent dss aceount it he consofidaiad statements of financiul position (see Note 135,

The maximum exposure for cash and cash equivalents {excluding cash on hand) is the carrying
amount less insured amount by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation equivalent to the actual
cash balance to a maximum of P0.50 million per depositor per bank. The maximum exposure of
trade and non-trade receivables and refundable deposits is equal to its carrying amount.
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Credit quality of Financial Assets, Other than Trade Receivables

The financial assets of the Group are grouped according to stage whose description is explained as
follows:

Stage | - Those that are considered current and up to 120 past due and based on change in rating
delinquencies and payment history, do not demonstrate significant increase in credit risk.

Stage 2 - Those that, based on change in rating, delinquencies and payment history, demonstrate
significant increase in credit.risk, and/or are considered more than 120 to 360 days past due but does
not demonstrate objective evidence of impairment as of reporting date.

Stage 3 - Those that are considered in default or demonstrate objective evidence of impairment as of
reporting dale.

The credit quality of the Group’s financial assets are as follows:

2620
ECTL Stagiig
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3
§2-month KCLL Eifetime LCL Lifetime ECL Totad
Financial assets at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents® £2,587,264,671 P B P2557,264.071
Nonteade receivables:
Advances Lo officers and
“employees 6,866,866 - - 6,866,866
Others 149,288,785 - - 149,288,785
Relundable depositg®* 21,427,422 - - 21,427,422
. P2,734,847,144 2 £ P22.734,847,144
Mxeluding coshian band amonsrimg fo 355,29 mitfion uy at Deceber 31, 2020,
¥ fcfinded uoader " Other noncrrent assess™ wecsunt in the consoliduted compny t of finusteial |
2019
ECL Staping
Stape | Stage 2 Stage 3
{2-month ECL Liletime ECL. Lifetime BCL Total

Financial assets at amortized cost
Cash and cagh equivalents® #2.010,218,215 L% B £22,010,218,215
Nontrade receivables:
Advances to officers and

employees 3,913,890 3,913,890
Others 2,194,508 - 2,194 508
Refundable depogitg®* 19,235,359 -~ 19,235 359

22 .037,561,972
Mrehwding castan hend amonnting 1o P 244.73 willion as o Oecenber 31, 2019,
¥ Included wader "Otber poneirvent asseis” uecount i the consoliduied wennriny: stateinent of fingneial position.

J B Bo P2.037.561.072

Credit Quality of Trade Receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at cach reporting date using a provision matrix (o measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segment with similar loss patterns (i.e, by customer type). The caleulation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information

that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Group’s trade receivables using
provision matrix:

2520
Days past due
91 days and
Current G-30 gays 31-60 dayy 6190 days aBove Votal
fxpeeted credit Toss 1% ) 4%, BEIEA ) 1% 29%
Eistimated tosal gy '
sunt st ded £7,609,364,151 #350,621,274 £409,092,189 #360,266.377 2,147 556,367 F11.076,500,358
cidit Joss 44 863938 21,309,558 45,194,870 41,185,689 614,044,062 T66.518314
WY
Days pasl due
) ) 1 days and
Larront G300 days 31-60 cl;_y‘v:; 01-96 days above Torst
1% % % 7% 36%
P3820,492 950 P336,4358,200 DALY 235 907 PELS 027335 B1236,464,675 PS 798079157
47562387 18,971,608 17,431,750 19,176,191 446,497 602 349,039,602

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder vajue.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in
economic conditions, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to sharcholders, pay off existing debts, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Parent Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
I d !

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for each of the three years encled
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,

The Group monitors its capital gearing by measuring the ratio of interest-bearing loan to total equity.
The Group’s interest-bearing loans, which are the short-term loans, amounted to B720.35 million and
B400.00 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, reépectively. The Group’s total equity
attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to
£12,809.06 million and #9,586.43 million, respectively.

. Faiv Value Measurement

The table below presents the carrying values and fair values of the Group’s assets and liabilities, by
category and by class, as at December 31:

2024
Fair Value
Significant
Quoted Prices in Significant Linobservahle
Active Markets Observable Input Inputs
Careying Vatue (Level 1} {Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Asvers Measured at Fair Velue
Land at revalved amount £2,803,196,184 B . £2.503,196,184
Financial assets at FYQC! 102,132,688 - 12,971,842 179,166,246
Assets for vehich Fair Values are
Liselosed
Investment propertics 34,869,834 - - 203,902,548
Financial assels at amortized cost -
Relunduble deposits™ 21,427,422 - - [7.422.4032
£3,051.625,524 P RIZO71.842 PI203,081.010

Hnchade wnder “Other noncurient assels™ aoeount ki e cainsolakaded stagenent of fianeiad postses (v Note 15,
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2019
Far Value
Significant
Quaoted Prices in Significant Unobservable
Active Markets  Observable Input Inputs
Carrying Value (Level ) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets o S i '
Assety Measured a1 Fair Value
Land at revalued amount #2.803,106,184 258 P P2R03.196,.184
Finapgial s at FVOOT 243,433,060 15,925,000 227.508.060
Axsets f Fair Values are
Disclosed
Irvestment properties 36.252,221 - 203,902,548
Financial asscts at amortized cost -
Refundable deposits® 19235339 - 18,350,350
3,102.116,824 P BI5925.600  P3252.657 {42

Slacludvd wunder “Other noncurrent asseiy™ aeeawt in the cosisoinbeted siatement of finuncial posiion (see Noie 15},

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the fair value of equity instruments in a listed entity is classified
under Level 3 due to the investee Company’s suspension of trading in the market.

The fair values of equity instruments in listed and non-listed companies classified under Level 3 were
determined through asset-based approach. Asset-based approach is based on the value of all the
tangible and intangible assets and fiabilities of the investee Company.

Presented below are the significant unobservable inputs used in the net asset valuations of the
Group’s financial assets in 2020 and 2019:

Range

BDescription Unobservable Inpufs 2020 2019
Listed equity instrument

Casinos and gaming industry Discount for lack of masketabilily 10%-36% 10%-30%
Discount for lack of control F0%-33% 10%-30%

Nou-listed equity nstraments:
Media and entertainment Discount for Tack of marketability H%-30% 1 0%-30%
- industry . . . : o . ASA A
Discount for fack of control 10%-30% 10%%-30%

An increase (decrease) in the significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the equity
investments wilf increase (decrease) the fair value of the equity investments.

Maovements in the fair value of equity investments classified under Level 3 are as follows:

2020 2019
Balance at beginning of year £227,508,061 £226,994,846
Fair value adjustment recognized under “Net \
unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at
FVOCP (48,347,815) 513,216
Balance at end of year £179,160,246 $£227,508,061

RN
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Fair Value Determination

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each asset and liability
for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Trade and Other Receivables

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents and trade and nontrade receivables approximate
their fair values primarily due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.
Refundable Deposits

The fair value of refundable deposits is based on the present value of the future discounted cash
flows. Discount rates used range from 3.26% to 4.44% in 2020 and 2019.

Financial assels at FVOC]

The Group’s investments in club shares were based on prices readily available from brokers and other
regulatory agencies as at reporting date. The fair values of equity investments in listed and non-listed
companies have been estimated using the net asset value model. The valuation using adjusted net
asset approach requires the management to measure the fair vatue of the individual assets and
liabilities recognized in an investee’s statement of financial position as well as the fair value of any
unrecognized assets and liabilities at the measurement date.

Ivestment Propertics and Land at Revalued Amount
‘The valuation for investment properties and Jand at revalued amount was derived through market data
approach based upon prices paid in actual market transactions. This approach relies on the

“comparison of recent sale transactions or offerings of similar properties which have oceurred and/or
offered with close proximity to the subject property adjusted based on certain elements of comparison
(e.g. matket conditions, location, physical condition and amenities). Significant unobservable
valuation input in determining the fair value of investment properties includes adjusted price per
square meter that ranges from £1,400 to £117,000. On the other hand, significant unobservable
valuation input in determining fair value of land at revalued amount includes adjusted price per
square meter that ranges from £200 to £97,000.

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated price persquare meter would result in a significantly
higher (lower) fair value of the properties.

Trade Payables and Other Curvent Liabilities (excluding Payable to Government Agencles and
Advances from Customers), Short-term Loans, Obligations for Program and Other Rights and
Dividends Payable

The carrying values of trade payables and other current liabilities, short-term loans, current portion of
abligations for program and other rights and dividends payable approximate their fair values due to
the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Lease tiabilities

The fair value is based on the discounted value of future cash flows using the applicable rates for
similar types of loans plus the applicable credit spread. Discount rates used ranged from 1.59% to
3.57% in 2020 and 3.07% to 5.43% in 2019.

-
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32. Changes in Liabilities Arising from Finaucing Activities

January i,

Procember 31,

2024 Additions Paymoents Oibers™ 2020

Short-terin loons F400,000,000 POE4,348,000 (P64 1,895,000) (#22,) 00,000) $720,343,000
3 bili 105,788,115 - (21,762,363} {7.169,680% 76,836,072
{8.734,008 b 475,908,531 (£,474,749,402) 14,894,437

1,406,667 12,146,694 (12,856,098) e 756,363

4 oy financing
activities FSIZ.0E8,7H) $2,472,396,228 {2,151,263,463) {£29,269,680) $817,851.872
“(hers pertain jo cevabndion of forcizs currency deronineded finns, wod seuration of itterest and pre-fermitation of teuse Lerbititios.

snincfimded indar MAceunts payable and ather current Hhilitivs " aceount i ihe cansalidatad stutentent of finunciad position
{vee Nate 16),

January |, Decembes 31,

2019 Additiony Payments Others® 2619
Short-term foans P500,000.000 P15 17.500.000 (P1.617,500,000) B~ P400.060.000
{.ease Habiities o 66.,535.587 53989212 (21.694,663) 6987979 H35, 788,115
Dividends payable 17.353.776 2,199.839.297 (2,198.159.065) - 18,724,008
Accroed interest expense® D4 444 46,185,621 {45.663,39%) 1,466.667
Totaf Hubilities from nancing )
ackivitics P534,533 807 13,817484 139 (£3,883,017,127) P6,987 979 523,988,790
SOthers periain o geerdlion of inferest,

W fnaducded uder " decounis pavable and other curent liuhitities™ ueeount in the consoliduted stiement of financiad position (se¢ Note 16),
JH ! |

33. Events after the Reporting Period

Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives fof Enterprises ™
President Rodrigo Duterte signed into law on March 26, 2021 the Corporate Recovery and Tax
Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE) Act to attract more investments and maintain {iscal prudence
and stability in the Philippines, R.A. 11534 or the CREATE Act introduces reforms to the corporate
income tax and incentives systems. It takes effect 15 days after its complete publication in the
Official Gazette or in a newspaper of general circulation or April 11, 2021,

The following are the key changes to the Philippine tax law pursuant to the CREATE Act which have
an impact on the Group: :

s Effective July 1, 2020, RCIT rate is reduced from 30% to 25% for domestic and resident foreign
corporations. For domestic corporations with net taxable income not exceeding £5.00 million
and with total assets not exceeding £100.00 million (excluding land on which the business
entity’s office, plant and equipment are situated) during the taxable year, the RCIT rate is reduced
to 20%. -

e MCIT rate reduced from 2% to 1% of gross income effective July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023,

s Imposition of improperly accumulated earnings tax (1IAET) is repealed.

As clarified by the FRSC in its Philippine Interpretations Committee Q&A No. 2020-07, the
CREATE Act was not considered substantively enacted as of December 31, 2020 even though some
of the provisions have retroactive effect to fuly 1, 2020, The passage of the CREATE Act into law
on March 26, 2021 is considered as a non-adjusting subsequent event. Accordingly, current and
deferred taxes as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020 continued to be computed and

measured using the applicable income tax rates as of December 31, 2020 (i.e., 30% RCIT/ 2%
MCIT) for financial reporting purposes.

T
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Applying the provisions of the CREATE Act, the Group would have been subjected to lower regular
corporate income tax rates of 25% and 20% effective July |1, 2020,

&

This will resolt in fower provision for current income tax for the year ended December 31, 2020
and lower income tax payable as of December 31, 2020, which will be reflected in the Group’s
2020 annual income tax return but will only be recognized for financial veporting purposes in its
2021 financial statements. Pending clarification from the tax authorities on how the taxable
income for the period beginning July 1, 2020 will be computed, the Group has not quantitied the
impact of the lower corporate income tax rate on the 2020 current income tax.

This wifl result in lower deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and benefit
from deferred tax for the year then ended by #195.47 million and £23.17 million, respectively.
These reductions will be recognized in the 2021 financial statements.

DR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
GMA Network, tne, and Subsidiaries
GMA Network Center

Timog Avenue corner EDSA

Quezon City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Group) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 26, 2021, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Group’s management. These schedules are
presented for purposes of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, and are not
pm[ ofthe basic ﬁnanchi statcmcms 'I‘hcsg »(,hcdx:kus hav;, hem sub';ected to the auditing prou,dmcs

mspecL, Lhc information rcqu:red to be set iolth lhuem in relation to tue basic ‘rmanua[ statements taken
as a whole.

SYCP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Ifielmda T. Beng H m

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 88823

SEC Accreditation No. 0943-AR-3 (Group A),
March 14, 2019, valid untit March 13, 2022

Tax fdentification No. 153-978-243

BIR Accreditation No. 08-0601998-078-2020,
December 3, 2020, valid until December 2, 2023

PTR No. 8534224, lanuary 4, 2021, Makati City

March 26, 2021
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SyCip Gorres Velsyo & Co. el (632) 8881 0347 BOAWRE Reg. Ne. 0H01,

G760 Ayala Avarnie fax: (632) 8819 0872 October 4, 2018, veitd untll August 24, 2621
1226 Makat City ay.cormiph BEC Accreditation fo 0012-FR-8 (Group Aj
Prilippines Novernber B, 2018, valid untii November 5. 2071

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

OMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries

GMA Network Center

Timog Avenue corner EDSA

Quezon City ) !

We have audited in accordance with Phifippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Group) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and
for each of the three years in the period ended December 3 1, 2020, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 26, 2021, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The Supplementary Schedule on Financial Soundness Indicators, including
their definitions, formulas, calculation, and their appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users, are
the responsibility of the Group’s management. These financial soundness indicators are not measures of
operating performance defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies. This schedule is presented for the
purpose of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance
with PFRS, The components of these financial soundness indicators have been traced to the Group’s
financial statements as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020 and no material exceptions were noted,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

, T. M( log .
Belinda T. Beng Hi

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 88823

SEC Accreditation No, 0943-AR-3 (Group A),
March 14, 2019, valid untit March 13, 2022

Tax Identification No. 153-978-243

BIR Accreditation No, 08-001998-078-2020,
December 3, 2020, valid until December 2, 2023

PTR No. 8534224, January 4, 2021, Makati City

March 26, 2021
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
DRCEMBER 31,2620

Annex 68 - §

A,

B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties

Financial Assets

and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

>. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during

the Consolidation of Financial Statements

D. Long-term Debt
E. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Related
Companies)
F. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
G Capital Stock
Additional Components '
i) Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

i) Map of Relationships of the Companies within the Group

Attached

Not applicable

Attached

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Attached

Attached

Attached



GMA NETWORK, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQU IRED BY ANNEX 68-J

DECEMBER 31, 2020

Schedule A. Financial Assets

Name of lssuing Bntity and
Association ol Lach [ssuc

Number ol
Shares or
Principal

Amounts of

Amount Shown

in the Statements

of Financiat

Value Based on

Market Quotation

at end of

income Received

3onds and Notes Pogition  Reporting Period and Accrued
Cash and cash equivalents ‘
Cash on hand P £355,239.902 £ -
Cash in banks - 2,537,305,379 - 1,986,070
Peso Placements:
Abacus Capital & Investment

Corporation - 103,143,226 - 6,170,974
Amalgamated Investment

Bancorporation - 7.863.306 157,149
Bank of Commerce - 4,095,419 - 37,974
Charter Ping An - 6,160,687 67,045
Land Bank of the Philippines - - - 1,117,949
Malayan Bank - 55,226,607 - 1,534,131
Meatropolitan Bank and Trust

Company 96,047 -
Phitippine Business Bank - 2,125,042 31,297
Philippine Bank of ) :

Communications 10,593,186 - 148,491
Unicepital, Inc. 30,787,713 811,659
United Coconut Planters Bank - 50,051,129 372,014
Union Bank of the Philippines - 50,127,621 - 1,020,298

----- 322271983 - 11,465,981
Doilar Placements: '
FastwestBank - - - $42.364
United Coconut Planters Bank - - - 117.998
T - - 260,362
Total Placements - 322,271,983 - 11,726,343
P £3214,817,264 £ P13,715,413
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehieusive Income

1P E Games Ventures, inc. £3,000,000,000 PH{7,273.005 2 P
Unicapital, Inc. 778504 56,594,699 -
Mabuhay Philippine Satellite 405,666 269,008 -
Optima Studio 75,000 4,805,609 -~ -

Ayala Alabang Country Club « A I 6,000,000 6,000,000
Baguio Country Club 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
Metropotitan Club (Metroclub) A 7 1,200,000 £,200,000 -

Manila Southwoods A § 1,285,000 1,285,000
Camp John Hay Golf Club i 150,000 150,000
Reelpoint Picture 216,925 - -
Tagaytay Country Club { 1,236,842 1,236,842 -
Royale Tagaylay 1 100,000 100,000 -
Others — £,000 -
2192,132,088 £12,971,842 P




Schedule B, Amounts Reeeivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

December 31, 2020

Deductions :
Name and Designation Balance at Beginning of Amount Amount Balance at End of
of Debtor Period Additions Collected  Written Off Current  Noncurrent Period

amounts receivable from directors, officers, employees, related parties and
ber 31, 2020 other than those for purchases subject to usual terms,
g in the ordinary course of business.

‘ot Applicable: The Group has no
principal stockholders as at Decein
for ordinary travel and expense advances, and for other such items arisin
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Schedule D, Long-Term Debt
December 31, 2020

Amount  Amount shown under caption Amount shown under
Title of 1ssue and Type Authorized  “Current portion of fong term caption “Long term debt”
of Obligation by Indenture  debt” in related balance sheet in related balance sheet

Not Appiicable: The Group has no long-term debt as at December 31, 2020,

Schedule E. Indebteduess to Related Parties (Long-Terms from Related Companics)
December 31, 2020

Balance, Balance,
Name January {, 2020 December 3t 2020

Not Applicable: The Group has no noncurrent indebtedness to a refated party as at
December 31, 2020.

Schedute F. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
December 31, 2020

Name of lssuing Batity of © Title of Issue of  Total Amount - Amount Owned
Securities Guaranteed by Each Class of CGuaranteed by Person for
the Company for which Securities and which the Nature of
this statement is filed Guaranteed Outstanding  Statement is Filed Jugrantee

Not Applicable: The Group has no guarantees of securities of other issuers as at
December 31, 2020.

Schedule G. Capital Stock

December 31, 2620
Number of
Number of shares  shares
issued and reserved for
outstanding as aptions,
shown under warrants, Directors,
Number of related statements conversion  Number of officers,
Tide of shares of {inancial and other shares held by and
issue authorized position caption rights related parties _employees  Others
Commaon 5,000,000,000 3,361,647,000 * N/A 3,024,812,553 19,620,355 316,614,092
Preferred 7.50(,000,600 7,499,507,184 ok ONJA 7,489,610,364 27,294 9,869,526

*“Net of treasury stock 1otaling 3,643,000 shares.
S4Nef of treasury stock totaling 492,816 shares.



GMA NETWORK, INC.

RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE
FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 '

Unappropriated retained eavnings, beginning of the year P2,587,183,680
Less: Non-actual/unreatized income

Deferred tax assets recognized in profit or foss {(526,680,119)
Unappropriated retained earni‘hgs, as adjusted to available

for dividend distribution, beginning of the year 2,060,503,56]
Add: Net income actually eamed/veatized during the period

Net income of the Parent Company closed to Retained Eamnings 6,02 1,590,045
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax

Provision for deferred income tax (137,361,004)

Unrealized foreign exchange gain (229,854)
Net income actually earned/realized during the year 5,883,999,187
l.ess:

Dividends declaration during the year (1,458.,059,531)

Treasury stocks (28,483,171)

Underlying shares of the acquired Philippine Deposit Receipts (5,790,016}
Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration, Ending £6,452,170,030

‘



GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

Financizl Ratios

Formula

» 2020 2019
Current/liquidity ratio Current assets over current Habilities 2.89:1 2.06:1
Total current assels 16,446,406.494
Divided by:
Total current Gabilites 5.681,682,520
Current ratio 2.89
Acid Test Ratio Quick assets over current liabilities 2.85:1 2.65:1
Total current assels . 16,446,406,494
L.ess:
Inventory 237,054,907
Other current assets 252,870
16,209,098,717
Divided by:
Total current ligbilites 5,681,682,520
Acid test ratio 2.85
Solvency ratio " Net income plus non-cash expenses aver total linbilities 6.69:1 .64:1
Net income 6,007.334,323
Add:
Non-cash expenses 1,636,450,964
Total ' 7,643,785,287
Divided by:
Total Habilities 11,057.854,830
Solvency ratio 0.69
Asset-Lo-equity ratio Fotal asset over total equity 1.86:% §.69:4
Total assets 23.939,269,470
Divided by: '
Total equity 12,881.,414,620
Asset-to-equily ratio 186
Debt-to-equity ratio Shorit-term loans over total equity 8.06:¢ 0.04:1
Total short-term loans 720,345,000
Divided by:
Total equity 12,881,414,620

Asset-to-equity ratio

0.06




[a84

Financial Ratios

Formula 2020 2019
Net debf o cquity ratio  Inferest-bearing loans and borrowings less eash and cash (0193 (0.19%1
equivalents over total ecquity
Totat short-term loang 720,345,000
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents 3.214.817.264

(2,494,472 264)
Divided by:

Total equity 12,881.414.620
Net debt-to-equity ratio (0.19)
Interest rate coverage Earnings before interest, tax over interest expense 418.52: % 68.34:1
ratio
Net income 6,007,334,323
Add:
interest 20,545,123
Tax 2,584.417.773
[.ess:
Interest income {13,715.413)
8,598,581,806
Divided by:
Interest 20,545,123
Intercst rate coverage ratio 418.52
Gross profit margin Gross profit over net revenues 79.67% 60.98%
Gross profit 15,404,340,080
Divided by:
Net revenue 19,335,895,538
Gross profit margin 79.67%
Net income margin Net income over net revenues 31.07% 16.00%
Net income 6,007,334,323
Divided by:
Net revenue 19,335,895,538
Net income margin 31.07%
Return on equity Net income over average total stockholder’s equity 5331 % 27 A3%
Net.income 6,007,334,323
Divided by:
Average cquity 11,269,245.815

Return on equity 53.531%




Financial Rafios Formula 2020 2009
Return on assets Net income gver average totaf assets 29.82% 16.68%
Net income 6,007,334,323
Divided by:
Average asset 20,143,074,020
Return on assel 29.82%




GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
\P OF THE RELATIONSHIPS OF THE COMPANIES WITHIN THE GROUP
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